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CODE: 2145 
Todd L. Torvinen, Esq. 
Nevada Bar No. 3175 
232 Court Street 
Reno, NV  89501 
(775) 825-6066 

IN THE FAMILY DIVISION OF 

THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 

 

PIERRE A. HASCHEFF, 
 
                       Plaintiff, 
 
     -vs- 
 
LYNDA L. HASCHEFF, 
 
                      Defendant. 
______________________/ 

 
Case No:  DV13-00656 
 
Dept  No:  12 

REPLY TO OPPOSITTION TO MOTION FOR ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE, OR IN 

THE ALTERNATIVE, TO ENFORCE THE COURT’S ORDERS 

 COMES NOW, Plaintiff, by and through his attorney, Todd L. Torvinen, Esq., 

and hereby files this REPLY TO OPPOSITION TO MOTION FOR ORDER TO SHOW 

CAUSE, OR IN THE ALTERNATIVE, TO ENFORCE THE COURT’S ORDERS.  

 AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030.  The undersigned does hereby 

affirm that the preceding document does not contain the social security number of any 

person. 

             Dated:  July 24, 2020. 

  The Law Office of 
  Todd L. Torvinen, Chtd. 
 
  /S/ Todd L. Torvinen 
  Todd L. Torvinen, Esq. 

 

 

 

F I L E D
Electronically
DV13-00656
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REPLY POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

1.Judge Hascheff Submitted a False Declaration Justifying Rule 11 Sanctions 

Defendant, Lynda Hascheff (“Ms. Hascheff”), argues that Plaintiff, Pierre 

Hascheff (“Judge Hascheff”), falsely stated in his declaration that the insurance 

company did not have an obligation to pay for the $2500 subpoena coverage when in 

fact his endorsement provides the company must contractually provide the subpoena 

coverage. As a result, she requests NRCP Rule 11 sanctions against Judge Hascheff. 

See Exhibit 1 attached; Motion for Declaratory Relief (“MDR”) Ms. Hascheff Reply to 

MDR page 3, lines 10-28; page 4, lines 1-8.  

Lucy Mason (also an attorney) and Ms. Hascheff’s counsel were provided a 

copy of the entire policy and the policy endorsements from the inception and therefore 

have had ample opportunity to review the policy and the endorsements to determine 

whether the subpoena coverage applies in this case. They chose not to thoroughly 

review these documents, or they did and still falsely asserted there was subpoena 

coverage. In either case this court should impose sanctions for falsely accusing Judge 

Hascheff of lying in his declaration. See NRCP Rule 11.  

A review of Section 4 (subpoena coverage) clearly states there are two 

conditions that must be met before subpoena coverage is provided. See Exhibit 1 

attached. First, the subpoena must arise from a lawsuit in which the insured is not a 

party. The second condition, Section 4 (b), arguably did not apply (i.e. Judge Hascheff 

provided advice in the past to the client) and therefore disqualified the subpoena 

coverage. More importantly the policy also provides there is no subpoena coverage if 

the subpoena is issued during the “Extended Reporting Period” which is exactly when 

this subpoena was issued. The coverage only applies if the subpoena is issued while 

Judge Hascheff is currently practicing law which he was not since he had already 

taken the bench in January 2013. 

Relying on Section 4 (b) noted above, the insurance company initially denied 

subpoena coverage. See Exhibit 2 attached, the email from the insurance company 

AA 0790
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adjuster, Andy Kenney denying coverage, and the relevant excerpt electronically 

reproduced below.   

 

 

The adjuster’s email (Exhibit 2) and the excerpt above strongly prove that 

Judge Hascheff’s declaration  accurately stated  the insurance company’s position, yet 

the insurance company nevertheless  paid the $2500 given the subpoena’s direct 

relationship to the threat of a pending malpractice claim. See Judge Hascheff’s Motion 

for Order to Show Cause (“OSC Motion”) page 9, lines 1-11 (defense counsel’s invoice 

clearly shows the company paid the $2500).  

It is important to note the clear terms of the endorsement provide that once 

Judge Hascheff provided notice of the subpoena it was deemed notification of the 

“potential claim“ under the policy. This confirms the existence of a “claim” consistent 

with MSA Section 40 (if any ‘claim’ is brought…the other…..shall ….. defend the other 

against the ‘claim’). See Exhibit 5 attached. See also affidavit of Todd Alexander 

Exhibit 3 attached.  

This is just one of several unsubstantiated claims made by Ms. Hascheff not 

based in fact or in law. Also see MSA Section 38- (Release) provides an exception to 

the parties’ mutual release excluding Ms. Hascheff’s defense and indemnity obligation 

in MSA Section 40 for “any malpractice claims” triggering her duty to defend and 

indemnify. See discussion in Section 3 “Contractual Indemnity” below.  

2. Ms. Hascheff Legal Fees and Litigation Conduct 

 Ms. Hascheff again argues that this OSC Motion and false assertions by Judge 

Hascheff intentionally drives up her legal fees. She makes this same argument 

AA 0791
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throughout the papers she has filed with this Court. Unfortunately, she neglects to  

mention  that early on Judge Hascheff twice offered to resolve the dispute, first 

through Lucy Mason, Ms. Hascheff’s attorney sister and then again with her attorney 

on April 26, 2020, before attorney’s fees would be incurred or and fully two months 

before the parties began filing motions. See Exhibit 4 attached. This Exhibit is provided 

to the Court not to show an agreement, but rather to show Ms. Hascheff’s 

unreasonable conduct. See NRS 48.105 (2). 

Rather than resolving a dispute of approximately $5000, Ms. Hascheff 

embarked on this unfortunate litigation tack where she undoubtedly already incurred 

fees in excess of $5000, and likely will incur attorney’s fees and costs  in multiple or 

multiples of that amount, all of which result from her highly unfortunate choice, and is 

certainly not Judge Hascheff’s responsibility. 

 Ms. Hascheff also unnecessarily caused Judge Hascheff to incur substantial 

legal fees. The clear terms of the policy provide there is a total $10,000 

retention/deductible. Most, if not all of the fees incurred to date accrued after the filing 

date of the malpractice complaint December 26, 2018. See Judge Hascheff’s 

declaration attached to his OSC Motion. This means that the parties are very close to 

the cap (policy deductible) amount and once Ms. Hascheff makes the payment in 

accordance with the indemnity and defense obligation, in MSA Section 40, her 

exposure (approximately $5000) for additional defense costs ceases. 

Pursuant to the terms of the policy the insurance company must pay for the 

balance of the defense costs in excess of the deductible. Ms. Hascheff and her 

counsel understood the benefit of this insurance coverage and limited exposure and 

that is why the parties agreed they would jointly pay for the extended tail coverage 

premium. See MSA Section 40; Exhibit 5. They jointly shared in the malpractice 

coverage premium and the $10,000 deductible and in turn, received $2 million of 

insurance protection against further fees and a potential judgement.  

AA 0792
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Quite unexplainably Ms. Hascheff chose instead to force Judge Hascheff (and 

herself) to needlessly incur substantial legal fees rather than  simply pay the modest 

amount of approximately $5000 as provided in the MSA (it may be a little more based 

on policy terms). Judge Hascheff even offered to accept minimal payments without 

interest and without incurring any legal fees. Ms. Hascheff unreasonably refused. See 

Exhibit 4 attached. Therefore, any argument that Judge Hascheff is causing these 

substantial legal fees is false and is of Ms. Hascheff’s own doing. 

3. Contractual Indemnity. 

Ms. Hascheff argues that by Judge Hascheff requesting this Court to interpret 

the four corners of the MSA by default he admits MSA section 40 is ambiguous 

otherwise, he would not ask this court to interpret the document. See Ms. Hascheff’s 

Opposition to Motion for OSC page 2, lines 3-16. Interpretation of a contract is a 

question of law for the court. See United Rentals Hwy. Tech. v. Wells Cargo 128 

Nev.666 at 672, 289 P.3d 221 (2012). This means the court determines if the contract 

is unambiguous and enforces the terms of the agreement or the court determines the 

contract is ambiguous (i.e. is subject to more than one reasonable interpretation) and 

considers extrinsic evidence. Judge Hascheff believes the MSA is clear regarding Ms. 

Hascheff’s obligation to defend and indemnify. However, if this court believes 

otherwise it may consider extrinsic evidence to determine the intent of the parties. It 

does not mean, as Ms. Hascheff suggests, when a court considers extrinsic evidence 

that one side or the other admits it is ambiguous.  

Ms. Hascheff admits that MSA Section 40 applies in its “entirety” to this dispute. 

Ms. Hascheff’s MDR page10-11, lines 23-25, lines 1-2; Ms. Hascheff’s Opposition to 

Judge Hascheff’s OSC Motion page 7, lines 3-10. She argues that he knew there was 

a potential claim at the time the parties signed the MSA and he did not disclose a 

potential malpractice claim five years prior to the action being filed. She argues he 

should disclose whether he used conflict waivers in the underlying litigation to 

determine if he breached his disclosures and therefore all of MSA Section 40 applies 

AA 0793
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to this dispute. See Ms. Hascheff’s MDR pages 10-11 and Opposition  page 7, lines 3-

10.The MSA Section 40 clearly provides if any “claim,” “action,” or “proceeding” well 

founded or not shall later be brought the indemnitor shall at his or her sole expense 

defend the other party against said “claim,” “action” or “proceeding.” The last sentence 

with respect to malpractice includes claim, action or proceeding and limits Ms. 

Hascheff’s exposure to 1/2 of the cost of any defense and judgment (not covered by 

insurance).  

Section 38 of the MSA clearly states that “Except for the obligations contained 

in or expressly arising out of this Agreement……. “  the parties release all interspousal 

claims that have accrued before or during marriage including claims sounding in tort. 

The terms of the MSA specifically indicate that this release does not  include Wife’s 

obligation to defend and indemnify Husband “for any malpractice claims.“ Judge 

Hascheff’s deposition is a “proceeding” and the company policy confirmed the 

subpoena was deemed a “potential claim” and the underlying trust litigation is an 

“action” consistent with MSA Section 40. See Exhibit 5 attached. Parenthetically, Ms. 

Hascheff also continues to argue that Judge Hascheff breached a fiduciary duty to her. 

By definition, this waiver also includes fiduciary duty claims based upon the marriage, 

unless her assertion is that her representation during the divorce was not independent 

and/or not competent. See Cook v. Cook, 912 P.2d 264, 112 Nev. 179 (Nev. 1996). 

MSA Section 40 also provides that both parties shall pay 1/2 of the cost of 

malpractice tail coverage insurance premium. Ms. Hascheff suggests that in order for 

her to be responsible to defend and indemnify Judge Hascheff for one half the 

deductible, additional language should have been added to the MSA. MSA Section 38 

and entire Section 40 when read together requires Ms. Hascheff to pay 1/2 of the cost 

of any defense and judgment not covered by insurance once a “claim, action or 

proceeding” occurred. As pointed out above the modest cost of the defense by the 

terms of the policy is approximately 1/2 of $10,000 deductible with the insurance 

AA 0794
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company picking up the balance. The MSA does not say Judge Hascheff is liable for 

the entire deductible amount.  

If the court believes Ms. Hascheff’s obligation to defend and indemnify is in fact 

ambiguous the court is required to consider the parties intent and why they would 

insert the defense/indemnity into the MSA in the first place. This explanation was 

provided above. The only evidence in the record of the parties’ intent is Judge 

Hascheff’s Declaration. Ms. Hascheff has not filed any affidavits in this dispute 

regarding the parties’ intent.  

The mere issuance of the subpoena pursuant to the policy provides it 

constitutes a potential malpractice “claim” which is consistent with MSA Section 38 

and 40 covering any and all claims whether or not well-founded and irrespective of 

when the costs and expenses were incurred in defending or responding to such 

“action” (i.e. the underlying Jackisk action), and “proceeding” (i.e. Judge Hascheff 

deposition). See Exhibit 1 and 5 attached. In construing the parties’ contractual intent, 

all parts must be considered to determine the intent of any particular part and the 

whole. Indenco Inc. v. Evans, 201 Cal. App. 2d 369 20 Cal Rptr 90 (1962). See also 

Royal Indemnity v. Special Services 82 Nev. 148, 150 413 P. 2d 500 (1966).  

Ms. Hascheff argues that the caselaw cited by Judge Hascheff are commercial 

cases, based on different facts and different indemnity and defense obligation 

language. She also argues Reyburn and United Rentals supra do not apply because 

those cases did not involve waivers of an indemnity/defense obligation. Ms. Hascheff’s 

Reply to MDR page 1, lines 19-23; page 7 lines 10-25. The Reyburn and United 

Rentals cases hold that a contract to indemnify an indemnitee for his or her own 

negligence must be strictly construed. Here indemnity for malpractice claim by 

definition covers Judge Hascheff for negligence if any and therefore any ambiguity in 

the MSA is not construed against Judge Hascheff.  

The caselaw interpreting indemnity and defense obligations by the indemnitor 

apply irrespective of the underlying transaction. The court simply interprets the parties’ 
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agreement and applies the standard rules. Ms. Hascheff fails to cite any case where a 

court would distinguish between a contractual indemnity in an MSA from any other 

indemnity obligation. In fact, a settlement agreement is construed as any other 

contract and governed by the principles of contract law. See May vs. Anderson 121 

Nev. 668, 119 P. 3d1254 (2005). Indemnity and defense obligations are also 

interpreted as any other contract. Reyburn supra page 344 (duty to defend). Mt. 

Builders LLC v. Fisher Roofing, Inc. 219 Ariz. 297 197 P. 3d 758 (2008). 

Further, the malpractice cases cited in Judge Hascheff’s Opposition to MDR 

clearly provide that a former client cannot bring a malpractice action without first 

concluding the underlying litigation and typically, if there’s a premature malpractice 

complaint filing, it is stayed until the underlying litigation is complete. When the MSA is 

read together with the policy, and the malpractice case law once the subpoena was 

issued, a potential “claim” existed and the defense of the pending “claim” commenced 

immediately in the underlying litigation (i.e. “action”). This Court does not have to imply 

additional terms to enforce Section 40 and require payment to but even if these terms 

were implied, they are consistent with the parties splitting the cost of the deductible 

including the premium for the policy.   

The duty to defend is much broader than the duty to indemnify requiring the 

indemnitor to defend any and all claims even if they are without merit See Reyburn 

Supra at p. 345 This duty to defend applies immediately and “from the outset” by virtue 

of a demand or claim. United Rental v. Wells Cargo 128 Nev supra at 676.  

Pursuant to a contractual duty to indemnify the indemnitee automatically has 

the right from the outset to tender the defense to the Indemnitor. See Reyburn supra 

127 Nev. at p. 345 and Crawford v. Weather Shield Mfs. 44 Cal. 4th 541, 187 P.3d 424, 

431 (2008). Judge Hascheff could have tendered the defense to Ms. Hascheff 

pursuant to Section 40 and let her pay for the entire defense of Judge Hascheff with 

him paying her half the cost. That would make very little sense since he was in a better 
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position to defend his advice in the underlying trust litigation. Either way she would be 

required to pay 1/2 of the costs. 

Indemnity is not contribution. Indemnity requires one party to pay for all of the 

costs of a certain event on behalf of another party. United Rental v. Wells Cargo 128 

Nev supra at 673. Contribution is the equitable sharing of the same cost. Medallion 

Development Inc. v. Converse Consultants 113 Nev. 27 930 P. 2d 115,119 (1997). 

The MSA provides for indemnity not contribution. 

Ms. Hascheff’s assertion that she has no obligation to pay half the defense 

costs and/or indemnify until her conditions are met are not expressed in the MSA. 

Indemnity simply and strictly requires the indemnitee to request payment. It does not 

require tendering of the subpoena or complaint as conditions to payment like other 

detailed indemnity/ defense provisions, although such requests are reasonable, and 

these documents were timely provided by Judge Hascheff. Ms. Hascheff’s position 

that she has some “implied” right or “conditions precedent” to her obligation to pay is 

entirely inconsistent  with the MSA or existing caselaw.  Her demand that Judge 

Hascheff must first provide her with: 1) confidential communications with his attorney, 

2) facts explaining why he’s negligent or not negligent i.e. admit liability, in the prior 

trial and current equitable claims litigation, and 3) explain his confidential decisions will 

not be found in the MSA nor any indemnity / defense case law. United Rentals 128 

Nev. p.676 supra (indemnitor required to defend and pay the costs whether the 

underlying litigation has merit or not). Further, as the equity claims in the underlying 

trust action remain to be adjudicated, this would create an unreasonable risk that such 

sensitive information would be released to adverse parties and create additional 

exposure to Judge Hascheff which is not in anyone’s best interest particularly since 

Ms. Hascheff is required to pay half of any excess judgment. Notably, it could also 

jeopardize Judge Hascheff’s insurance coverage if the insurance company determines 

these disclosures are prejudicial especially given the ongoing nature of the equitable 

claims in the underlying litigation and malpractice action. Why would any attorney 
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publish this confidential and privileged information while there is pending actions? 

Finally Judge Hascheff was not just a percipient witness in the trust litigation, but he 

was continually questioned about his legal opinions and to justify his legal advice.  

Ms. Hascheff’s suggestion that somehow, she was substantially prejudiced 

because of Judge Hascheff decisions in this case has simply not been shown, nor did 

she provide any documents or evidence to support this assertion. There is nothing she 

could have done to improve her situation or protect against or reduce her exposure 

under the defense and indemnity obligation. She is not an additional insured under the 

policy and her insurance rights are derivative in nature (i.e. through Judge Hascheff’s 

policy/ legal services) and she has no exposure other than the deductible and except 

for a potential judgment in excess of policy limits. She was not working as a lawyer in 

Judge Hascheff’s firm nor does she have any information that could assist in the 

underlying action or malpractice case 

Unlike Reyburn, Judge Hascheff did not wait five years to disclose the potential 

claim and wait two years after the indemnitee participated in the underlying litigation 

before the indemnitee tendered the defense to the indemnitor in the ongoing litigation. 

 This court can simply rely on the legal authorities provided by Judge Hascheff in 

order to make a finding that Ms. Hascheff must pay 1/2 of the defense costs until the 

deductible is satisfied because to date Ms. Hascheff has not cited any contrary 

authority. Her unreasonable demands for information as a condition precedent to 

payment is without merit.  

Ms. Hascheff argues Judge Hascheff’s attorney drafted the MSA and any 

ambiguity must be construed against the drafter. See MDR Reply page 2, lines 11-16, 

page 5 lines 15-22.   When both parties negotiate the provisions of an agreement and 

have equal bargaining power the contract will not be construed against the drafter. 

Indenco Inc. v. Evans, 201 Cal. App, 2d P. 376, supra p. 376.  In this case both parties 

negotiated for many months before the MSA was signed with substantial revisions 

made at the request of Ms. Hascheff and her attorney. Ms. Hascheff makes this claim 
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even though MSA Section 36.1 plainly precludes this claim, as construction against 

the drafter with regard to any ambiguity is prohibited. See Exhibit 5 attached.  

4. Fiduciary Duty and Implied Covenant of Fair Dealing and Good Faith. 

Originally Ms. Hascheff argued that Judge Hascheff breached his fiduciary duty 

and covenant of good faith and fair dealing because: (1) he did not timely disclose the 

subpoena, (2) the filing of the malpractice action, (3) refused to provide requested 

documents, (4) made a unilateral decisions without consulting Ms. Hascheff, and (5) 

did not disclose that the fees were related to the underlying trust litigation and (6) the 

malpractice litigation was stayed. Ms. Hascheff’s MDR page4-5 and pages 8-9. 

However, Ms. Hascheff also argues that Judge Hascheff has waived and is collaterally 

estopped from exercising his contractual right to a defense and indemnity because of 

that breach and therefore, the defense and indemnity caselaw Judge Hascheff cited 

do not apply. Once again, opposing counsel cites absolutely no authority for this 

assertion. Ms. Hascheff’s Reply to Motion OSC page 7, lines 9-27.   

Judge Hascheff disclosed all this information to Lucy Mason, Ms. Hascheff’s 

attorney sister, prior to Ms. Hascheff obtaining her counsel. See Exhibit 6. He also 

provided all of the documents requested within one day except privileged information 

for the reasons stated above (but did provide detailed time entries from his attorney as 

requested but redacted for confidential matters).  

Judge Hascheff provided this court with legal authority where in the Nevada 

supreme court determined there is no fiduciary duty or an implied covenant good faith 

and fair dealing in contractual indemnity cases.  Yet, Ms. Hascheff continues to make 

the argument - again without any legal authority. The cases she cited in her reply are 

not “indemnity/defense” obligation cases. Long v. Towne. 98 Nev. 11, 639 P. 2d 528 

(1982) does not apply since Judge Hascheff did not commit a constructive fraud nor 

did he have any confidential or fiduciary relationship with Ms. Hascheff when he 

requested indemnity in January 2020. Perry v. Jordan, 111 Nev. 943, 900 P.2d 335 

(1995) also does not apply because Judge Hascheff did not act with intent to gain Ms. 
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Hascheff’s confidence and purported to act or advise her, pretending to have her 

interests in mind when he requested indemnity per MSA Section 40. His action in the 

underlying trust case was beneficial to her, and indemnification is simply governed by 

contract law. 

Even if there is a fiduciary duty or implied covenant it was not breached under 

any circumstances particularly since all the information, they requested was provided 

within one day of the request. Ms. Hascheff argues Judge Hascheff should be 

collaterally estopped from exercising his defense/ indemnity rights. It is not clear if she 

is asserting issue preclusion (a form of collateral estoppel, or equitable estoppel, 

and/or waiver). See Kahn v. Morse & Mowbray, 121 Nev. 464 117 p.3d 227 (2005). To 

constitute equitable estoppel Ms. Hascheff must prove a promise was made to her by 

Judge Hascheff and that she relied on the representation, which resulted in 

detrimental reliance and damage D.E. Shaw Laminar Portfolio Inc., LLC v. Achron 

Corp., 570 F. Supp 2nd 1262 (2008); In Re Harrison Living Trust, 121 Nev. 217, 112 P. 

3d 1058 (2005).Mill-Spec, Inc. v. Pyramid Precast Corp, 101 Nev. 820 710 P. 2d 1387 

(1985) (no implied waiver from conduct which does not clearly reflect an intent to 

waive). There was no conduct or promises or underlying facts which caused Ms. 

Hascheff to act in a certain way to her detriment causing her damage to create any 

such defense. In fact, she benefited when the underlying action concluded favorably.  

In order to constitute a waiver of a right such as an indemnity or defense 

obligation there must be a known right, a knowing voluntary waiver of that right and 

intent to relinquish it. In re Sports Restaurant & Saloon 64 B.R. 447 (D. Nev 1986). 

Again, there are no facts justifying this defense. 

Ms. Hascheff argues she is not pursuing the tort claim (i.e. breach of implied 

covenant of good faith and fair dealing). If she is not pursuing the tort claim of a breach 

of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing, then she abandoned and waived 

it.  Contract claims for the breach of the implied covenant typically do not provide the 

nonbreaching party with her requested remedy. 

AA 0800



 

-13- 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 

5. Attorneys Fees 

Ms. Hascheff argues she is entitled to attorney’s fees as the prevailing party 

and pursuant to NRS 125.150(3).  This statue by its terms do not apply to this dispute 

over a contractual indemnity. There is no prevailing party provision in the MSA except 

for Section 35. As a condition precedent to claiming reasonable attorney’s fees and 

costs the prevailing party must first give a 10-day written notice specifying the 

requirements and an opportunity to cure within the 10-day period. Failure to provide 

this specific notice and opportunity to cure preclude attorney’s fees and costs even if 

they are the prevailing party. Ms. Hascheff did not provide this 10-day notice only 

Judge Hascheff did. See Exhibit 7. 

It should also be noted that Ms. Hascheff’s Opposition to the instant Motion 

does not directly address the fact that Judge Hascheff complied with the 10-day notice 

requirement as required by Section 35 of the MSA. Postdivorce, the rights and 

obligations of the parties are governed by contract principles. Judge Hascheff 

complied with those contractual requirements. 

For the foregoing reasons, Judge Hascheff moves this Court: 

1. To issue an order for Ms. Hascheff to show cause as to why she intentionally 

disobeys this Court’s order (Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Decree of 

Divorce incorporating the terms of the parties’ MSA, or in the alternative, 

2. To enforce the terms of the parties’ incorporated MSA, and order the 

payment of the indemnification, and 

3. Order Ms. Hascheff pay Judge Hascheff’s attorney fees and costs whether 

this matter proceeds as contempt, or as an order for enforcement upon affidavit from 

counsel. 

// 

// 
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 AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030.  The undersigned does hereby 

affirm that the preceding document does not contain the social security number of any 

person. 

             Dated:  July 24, 2020. 

 
  The Law Office of 
  Todd L. Torvinen, Chtd. 
 
  /S/ Todd L. Torvinen 
  Todd L. Torvinen, Esq. 
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EXHIBIT INDEX 
 
Exhibit 1 Policy Endorsement      3 pages 
 
Exhibit 2 Email from Andy Kenney     1 page 
 
Exhibit 3 Declaration of Todd Alexander    2 pages 
 
Exhibit 4 Email between Judge Hascheff and Shawn Meador 2 pages 
  
Exhibit 5 MSA         18 pages 
 
Exhibit 6 Email between Judge Hascheff and Lucy Mason  3 pages 
 
Exhibit 7 Email & letter from Judge Hascheff to Shawn Meador 3 pages 
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MARITAL SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT

This Ma.rital Settlement Agreement is entered into effective September 1, 2013, between Pierre
A" Hascheff (Husband) and Lynda Lee Hascheff (Wife) in order to resolve all issues between

them with rcgard to th€ dissolution oflheir malriage. The parties intend this Ageement 10 be a
final and complete settlernent of ali oftheir rights and obligations to each other arising out of
their marriage, including without limitation, all past and present interspousal claims ofany kind
that either may have against the other, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement.

Therefore, I-Iusband and Wife agree as follows:

RECITALS

Marriage and Separation

1. Husband and Wife were matied on September 8, 1990 in ReDo, Washoe Colulty,
Nevada, and have thereafter, been matied to each other conlinuously, They have lived sepaxate
and aparl since April 12,2012.The dlation ofthe marriage is 23 yeals.

Grounds for Divorce

2, Iffeconcilable differences have arisen betweeD Husband and Wife, which have Ied to aD

iuemediable breakdown of 1he marriage. There is lo possibility of saviug the ma iage tbrough
counseling or o rer means, ruld the parties have agreed to 1-he dissolulion reirnarriage.

Children of Marriage

The padies have l1o urinor chiidren. Wife may claim both cl ldrel as dependents to the
extent she is eligible 10 do so. Notwithsla.nding the previous, if wife receives no tax benelil from
said dependents, then l{usband may claim one or both.

Leg,rl Proceeditrgs

3. The original ofthis Agreemenl shall be filed with the Cout. The coud will be requested
to (i) approve the enlire Agreement as fair and equitable; (ii) order each party to comply with all
ofits executory provisions; and (iii) merge the provisions ofthe Ageement into the Decree
Divorce. This Agreement is Dot conditioned upon the merger with or enty ofthe Decree of
Divorce.

(A 
DP
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SPOUSAL SIJPPORT

Payments of Spousel Support

4. Husband shall pay spousal suppofl to Wife inthe sum of$4,400.00 per month for three
(3) years until August 30,2016. Commencing on September 1,2016, Flusband will pay spousal
support of$3,400.00 until he retires. Payments shall be due on or before the first day ofthe
month. The alimony may be readjusted accordingly in the event of changed circumstances.
Wife acknowledges dre alimony and Wife's PERS survivor benefit is a material consideration
and matedal pafi ofthis settlement.

Termination of Spousal Support

5, The payments of spousal support provided in this Agreement, and the coult's juisdiction
to order spousal suppolt, shall terminate on the death of either party or on the remaniage of Wife
befole the above xermination date.

Modification ofAmount of Spousal Support

6. The amount of the periodic payments of spousal support provided in this Agreement may
be modified either upward or downward or terminated by any court in the future on a showing of
change of circumstances.

Alimony Tax Treatrnont

7,1. AII payrnents to or on behalf of Wife for her supporl, as set forth above, are intended to
q$alify as alimony under Internal Revenue Code sections 7l and 215, and are to be included in
Wife's gross income and deducted by Husband as provided in those Code seclions.

7,2, Wife agrees that she shall reporl as income on her federal ard state incomg tax leturns for
the yeax ofreceipt all sums paid to her, or on her behalt by Husband under this Agreement, and
that she shall pay any resulting taxes due. Wife agrees to indemnify and hold Ilusband harmless
from any federal and state income tax obligation that he rnay incur by reason of Wife's failure to
report as income, and pay the taxes due on, sums paid to her or on her behalfas spousal support
under this Agreement.

Spousal Support Provisions Contingent on Tax Laws

8. The parties have agreed on the spousal suppolt provisions ofthis Agreement in light of
the existing federal ald state income tax laws, which provide that spousal suppott is deductible
by the payor and taxable to the payee. Ifthe laws are changed so that spousal suppofi payments

shall be taxable to the payor and not to payee, the issue ofspousal support shall be subject to
future negotiation, agreement, or order of court.

Notice of Occurrence of Contingencies

u.rstarl (4 Wife-!!- Page 2 of 16
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9. Husband and Wife shall each notify the other Fomptly and in writing ofthe happening of
any contingency that affects the dght or duty of either pady to receive or make spousal support
payments under the terms of this Ageement. Any overyayments of spousal support made by
Husband after lhe occunence of such a contingency and before receipt oflhe notice shall
immediately be refunded by Wife, or set off against future payments after first applying the
overpayments to any suppot amounts that are in default.

10. Wife ackrowledges Husband has no obligation 1o provide Wife with health insurance
coverage. Husband will cooperate with Wife so she may obtain COBRA insurance coverage
within sixty (60) days after entry ofdecree ofdivorce. Husbard will pay one-half(1/2) the cost
ofthe COBRA premium for a pe od ofeighteen (18) months provided, holvever, if Wife obtains
her own coverage through her employment, the COBRA payrnents shall cease. Husband's
payment share of COBRA premium is no1 considered alimony. Wife acknowledges Husband
can no longer carry health insurarce on Wife after the divorce. In lieu of COBRA, Wife may
obtain her own health insurance policy in the private market or through the excharge offered
through the Affordable Care Act (So-Called Obamacare). In the event she does so, the same
terms and conditions shall apply as ifshe had obtained COBRA continuation covefage.

DIVISION OF PROPERTY

DiYision of Community Assets

11. I{usband a1ld Wife agree that their commru]ity propefiy shall be divided between lhem as

set forth below.

1 1 1 The parlies firrther agree that this A$eemeDt effects a substantially equal division of their
communixy propelty. Any equalization is forever waived.

11.2 fuverside Drive office and back house located at 1029 and 1029 % will be sold and fie
Det proceeds less expenses, storage and relocation costs will be shared equally. Each party shall
bear one half of the tax consequences as a result of the sale.

1 1.3 The Wife will leceive 1te Alpine Meadows property and the Pineridge prcpefiy valued at

$360,000.00 and $120,000.00 respectively. The propefy at 120 Juanita Drive,lncline Village,
Nevada will be sold. Husband will receive the 2555 Manzanita property valued at $760,000.00.
The Arizona property at 2128 Catamaran will be sold. The parties willjointly a$ee to the initial
and any subsequent charges to the listing price and terms of any sale described above. If the
paxties are unable to agree on the terms ofany sale, the respective realtor will mediate the dispute
and if the parties still caroot agree, the Court will decide dre issue. The net proceeds ofany sales

described above, after tanes, storages, other expenses and moving costs will be divided equally.
Each pafy reserves the right to use their one-half (1/2) of the net proceeds in a tax free exchange
urder IRC I 03 I .

wu'
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Assets Assigned to Wife

12. Husband releases, lransfers, and assigns to Wife, as her sole and separate property, all of
his dght, title, and intercst in and to the assets listed below. Husband fui1her agrees to execute
all documents that may be required to establish or confirm Wife's sole ownership ofall listed
assets as described on Exhibit 1 attached hereto ard incomorated bv reference.

Assets Assigned to Husband

13. Wife releases, transfers, and assigns 10 Husband, as his sole and separate propefiy, all of
her ght, title, and interest in and to the assets listed below. Wife fuilher agrees to execute any
a.nd all documents that may be required to establish or confirm Husband's sole ownership ofany
listed asset as described on Exhibit 1 attached hereto and incorDorated by referencc.

Encumbrances and Litigation

14, Wilh regard to all propefty assigned under this Agreernent, except as may otherwise be
specifically provided in this Agreement, the assignee spouse assumes all encumbrauces and liens
on the property ard agrees to indemnify and hold the other party free and harmless from any
claim or liability tiat the other parly may suffer or may be required 10 pay because ofthose
encumbrances or liens, including the paymeDt ofreasonable attorney fees. Wife a1ld H[sband
shall refiDance their respective propedies 10 remove and release the other from the existing loan
ald liability within one (l) year,

Insur:rnce

15. The Flusbard's current sroup term life insuance with Washoe County and the NY Life
iDsuance shall, as offie effective date ofthis Agreement, remain with Husband as owner ard
Wife shall receive 100o/o ofthe net proceeds ofHusband's Washoe Corulty and NY life
insurance policy i iir"J*JlL,'" "urii"ti"" 

t" f 4
maintaiD the NY Life policy after December 31,2014. Husband shall be considered the opner
ofthe insurance policy, and shall pay all policy premiums coming due on and affer that date, for
so long as the policy is maintained in force. Wife acknowledges Husband's Washoe County
policy will terminate if Husband is no longer a county employee.

Social Security

16. The Parties retain their respective Social Security benefits, including any derivative rights
to which they might be entitled by virtue oftheir maraiage to each other, as their separate
propefiy pulsua.nt to federal law

Pierre A. Hascheff, Chtd. Prolit-Sharing Plan

lluru*o 
(P 

wtt lLl^- Pase 4 otl6
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l'7.7. Wife's % interest in the Pielae A, Hascheff, Chtd., Profit-Shaxing PIar shall be
implemented by a sepaxate Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO). Wife shall have the
dght to elect to have her interest in the Piere A. Hascheff, Chtd., Profit-Sharing Plan allocated to
a separate account for her (ifpe nitted by the Piene A. Hascheff, Chtd., Profit-Sharing Plan); or
distributed to her directly; or distdbuted to an IRA 0r eligible retirement plan of which she is a
beneficiary. If Husband predeceases Wife, paymenl to Wife shall nonetheless be made mder the
tems oflhis Agreement. If Wife dies before full payment to her has been made, the amount
unpaid shall be dishibuted to the beneficiary designated in writing by Wife 1o dre plan
administuator ofthe Pi€ue A. Hascheff, Chtd., Profit-Sharing Plan in the manner prescribed by
the plan adrninistrator, or ifno benehciary has been so designated, to Wife's estate.

17.2. Wife shall repofi, pay, and be responsible for all taxes due on amounts received by her
fiom the Piete A. Hascheff, Chtd., Profit-Sharing Plan. Under the Intemal Revenue Code, the
nonpalticipa.nt spouse shall be treated as the distributee ofany distribution or payment made to
her under a QDRO. As such, all amounts distdbuted to the nonparticipa.nt ftom the Pielae A.
Hascheff, Chtd., Profit-Sharing Plan are otherwise includible in iucome shall be taxable to the
nonparticipant to the extent not rolled over to another qualified plal or Individual Retirement
Accoul]t. The Wife shall indemnify Husband for any tares (including interesl and penalties, ard
"1ax on tho tax", ifany) thal he may be required to pay to any taxing authority in connection with
aDy plan distribution. The parties agree to cooperate in filing consislent 1ax returns in corulectiotr
with distributions received from Piene A. Flascheff, Chtd,, Profit-Shaxing Plan. The courl shall
reseNe jurisdiction to resolve any disputes in connectiofl with any tax return. Ifeither spouse
should breach his or her repo ing or paymenl obligalions, he or she shall indemnify dre other
spouse for any cost, fee, or other expense (inoluding but not limited 10 accounting and allomey's
fees) incuned by thg other spouse in connection with any audit or examination oflhe olher
spousers tax retum, relative to accomplishing the tax result described above.

Husband's PDRS Benelits

18.1. Wife is entilled to, and awarded as her sepa.rate propedy, her community interest in and
benefits ofHusband's Public Employees' Retirement System Nevada ("PERS" or the "System")
to which Husbald is or may become entitled on accouDt ofhis past, present, and futule
gmproymeru.

18.2. Husbard will elect a form of benefit that would payto Wife (inthe event ofllusband's
death dudng pay status pdor to that of Wife), a sum equal to the amount that would be paid to
Wife under Option 6 with the specific sum payable to Wife ifshe survives Husband. The Wife's
share ofHusbald's pension during the parties' joint lives shall be detemined under the "wait
ard see" approach described in the Gemma ard Fondi cases. The option 6 survivors amount
payable to the Wife upon the death of the Husband shall be the sum of $3,200.00 per month,
adjusted for any COLA increases which occur after the date ofthe Husband's retirement. The
paxties agree to equally bear during their joint lives when Husband is retired, the premium cost
(the reduction in the monthly benefit) between option 1 and option 6. By way of example, if
Husband's unmodified option 1 benefit is $8, 200 per month, and the option 6 benefit is $7,000
per month, the premium cost is therefore $1,200 per month. Upon retirement, for example, if
Husband receives 60010 ofthe benefit and Wife receives 40% ofthe benefi1. then without

f,$
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adjustment Husband would be paying 60% ofthe $1,200 premium cost per month ($720); and
Wife would be paying 40% ofthe $1,200 premium cost per month ($480). In order to equally
divide the premium cost of$1,200, 10% ofthe total premium cost ($120) would be subtracted
fiom Wife's monthly benefit, and $120 r,vould be added to Husband's monthly benefit dudng the
joint liyes ofth€ pa i€s. In the event Wife predsceases the Husband, the benefixs reyeft to the
Husband.

18.3. In the event Husband dies before he retires and before stais receiving PERS benefits,
Wife shall receive 1 000/o of any survivor benefits provided l{usband dies on or before January 1 ,
2019. IfHusband dies after January 1, 2019, but before he retires, Wife will receive 75% and the
ohildren will receive 25% of said benefits to be shared equally by the children, Wife and
Husband agree to establish an escrow and/or aust for the children's share of said survrvor
benefits,

18.4. Husband is awarded the balance ofany and all the benefits as his separate property from
PERS, whether fixed, acorued, contingent or otherwise.

18,5. During thejoint lives ofthe parties, the System shall directly pay Wife her inlerest in the
monthly retirement allowance.

18,6. Wife tuderstands that she will be entitled to a distribution ofretirement benelils under
PERS although I-Iusband is not yet retired. Wife aclsowledges her right to mal(e a "Gemma
election" to obtain an immediate distribution ofher inlerest in lhese retiremenl benelits on o!
after the date when Flusband is fust eligible to draw a retirement allowance ftom PERS
(inespective ofhis decision not 10 relire). Wife hereby waives her dghl to make a "Gemma
electio11".

18.7, The Parties will enter iDto a stipulated Qualified Domestic Relations Order to divide the
retirernent benelits provided for by the Public Employees' Retirement System Nevada. The court
shall retainjurisdiction to resolve any disputes conceming the content ofthe Qualified Dornestic
Relations Order or to implement or correct any nonqualifying provision by issuing an amended
or subsequent order. Until a Qualified Domestic RelatioDs Order is executed by the padies and
qualifred by the administato$ or the coult, Husband shall not make or accept any electioq or
take any action, urder the Public Employees' Relirement System Nevada (nor shall the Plan
accept any elections) that might adversely affect Wife's interest in the Plan without Wife's prior
w tten consent or fudher coufi order upon ninety (90) days' notice to Wife (which notice may be
shortened by the court upon a showing ofgood cause). Pending the preparation ofthe above
order, the parties intend for this Agreement, when incolporated into a Decree ofDivorce, to
constitute a Qualified DoDestic Relations Order for the Public Employees' Retirement System
Nevada (if this becomes necessary). The pafiies stipulate that to the extent that any provision of
this Agreement (when incorponted into a Decree ofDivorce) pertaining to qualified plans is no1

found to aonstitute a Qualified Domestic Relations Order, the court shall retain judsdiction to
implement or correct ary nonqualifling provision by issuing an amended or subsequent

Qualified Domestic Relations Order.

Division of Personal Property
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18.8. The parties will make a division ofall remaining items of fumiture, fumishings, and
personal property to the extent they can agree. Thereafter, items will be allocated in the
following manner. The parties shall flip a coin to determine which pafy will make the first
choice of items. The other pafly will have the second and third choice of items. The party who
made the first choice will have the fourth choice. and all choices after that will alternate between
the padies until all items are selected. Selections shall be without regard to value. Parties will
retain respective furniture in their residence.

Assets Assigned to Parties' Children

19. The following assets shall be owned as follows:

19.1 The 201 1 Toyota RAV4 by Wife and insured by and paid for by Wife; and

19.2 The 2008 Jeep by Husband and insured by and paid for by Husband,

19.3 To the extent allowed, Wife's car and the daughter's car (RAV4) will remain under the
cunent umbrella policy and Wife will reimburse Husband their respective shal€ ofthe lotal
premrum.

19.4 Any other assets the pafties allocated the children as described elsewhere in this
Agrgemenl,

The assets agreed to be owned by the children are not a part ofthe division of commurity
property of dre parties. Assets may be tansfeffed 1o a minor under the Uniform Gifls to Minors
Act, as agreed to by the padies.

Allocation of Community Debt$

20, Husband and Wife agree that thefu commuuity debts and obligations shall be allocated
between them as set fofth below The palties further agree that this A$eemenl effects an equal
division oftheir community debts and obligations.

Debts Assumed by Husband

21. Each party agees to assume and pay the debts as disclosed on Exhibit 1. Husband fulther
agrees (1) to indemnify and hold Wife harmless from the above debts, ard (2) to defend Wife, at
his own expense, against ary claim, action, or proceeding that is hereafter brought seeking to
hold Wife liable on account ofthese debts, including the payment ofreasonable attomey fees
incuned by Wife in defense of any such claim, action, or proceeding. Wife agrees Husband may
payoffthe Sam's Club debt with the commulity property funds and Wife will obtain her own
Sam's Club aacount card. Husband will retain the cunent Sam's Club account. Husband will
assume his credit card debt.

trrJe
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Debts Assumed by Wife

22. Each palty agrees to assume and pay the debts as disclosed on Exhibit l.Wife further
agrees (1) to indemnify and hold Husband hajmless fiom the above debts, and (2) to defend
Husband, at her ou'n expense, against any claim, action, or proceeding that is hereafter brought
seeking to hold Husband liable on account ofthese debts, including the paymeDt ofreasonable
attomey fees incuted by Husband in defense of any such claim, action, or proceeding. Husband
will pay Wife's credit card debt up to $6,000.00 from the pafiies joint account in accordance
with Exhibit 1. Wife will assume her credit card debt in excess of$6,000.00.

Division of Omitted Assets

23. Il afler dre execution ofthis Ageement, ally asset is discovered to exist that was r]ot
listed in arld disposed ofby this Agreement and that would have been community or quasi-
cornmunity property ofthe pafties, that omitted asset shall be divided equally between the
pafties. Il howevgr, the existence ofthe asset was known to one ofthe parties at the time of
execution of this Agreement, the paty with thal knowledge shall transfer or pay to flre pafiy
without knowledge ofthe asset ("the other party"), at the other party's option, one oflhe
following: (1) ifthe assel is reasonably suscepxible to division, a portion ofthe asset equal to the
other palty's interest in it; (2) the fair maxket value ofthe other pa(y's interest in the asset on the
effective date oflhis Agreement, plus interest at the legal rate from the effective date to the date
ofpaymert; or (3) the fair market value oflhe olhe! par'[y's interest in the asset on the date oD

which the olher pafliy discovers the existence ofthe asset, plus interost at the legal rate from the
discovery date to the dale ofpayment. This provision will not be deemed to impair d)e
availability of any other remedy arising from nondisclosure of community assets,

Omitted Community Debts

24, The parties acknowledge thal they have provided in this Agreement for the payment ofall
commu ty debls of which each is aware. Any debt, claim, or obligation (including the cost of
defending agailNt it) not provided for in this A$eemeDt and unloown by the parlies at the time
ofthe preparation ofthis Agreement, will be deemed ajoint community obligation as long as the
debt, claim, or obligation alose from the conduct ofboth parties, or from the conduct ofone
paxty a.ud the marital community benefitted from that conduct, occuning during the marriage but
before the effective date of this Agreement. If, however, an omitted claim, debt, or obligatior
arose from the conduct ofonly one party and the conmunity did not beDefit from it, then that
claim, debt or obligation will be the sole and separate obligation of that party. This provision
will not be deemed 10 impair the availability of any other remedy arising from nondisclosure of
comnunity debts.

Reimbursement and Equalizing Payment

25,1, To equalize the division ofthe parties' community assets and obligations, Husband agrees

to pay Wife the $82,000.00 equalization payment although the equalization payment shown on

ilt
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Exhibit 1 is $80,697.00. Said equalization payment shall be paid ftom the net proceeds ftom the
sale oftie Incline propel1y provided, however, iftie Incline property is not sold within one (1)
yeax ofthe propety's listing date, then Husband will pay Wife the sum of$82,000.00
cqualization payment within ninety (90) days atler the expiration of said one (1) yeal period.

Waiyers Regarding Future Earnings and Acquisitions

26. The parties agree and acknowledge that all income, eamings, or othe( property received
or acquired by Husband or Wife on or after September 4, 2013, the date ofthis agreement, is the
sole and separate properly of fhe receiving or acquiring party. Each party does forever waive,
release, and relinquish all right, title, and interest in all income, eamings, or other property so

received or acquired by the other.

Revocation of Trust

27, The parties have previously created the Piene aDd Lynda HascheffRevocable Trust,
dated May 17, 2005, naming Husband and Wife as Trustees. The parties now revoke the Piere
and Lynda Hascheff Revocable Trust and agree that the remaining hust property shall be
distributed one-half(1/2) to each according to the torms oflhis Agreement.

Post-Separation Debts

28, The parties agree that every debt incurred by either party afler Scptember 4, 2013, shall
be the obligation of the party incwring tlle debt, The palties fufiher agree that the paxty incuning
a debt after that date shall (1) indernnify and hold the olher pal'ty harmless ftom 1-11e deb1, and (2)
defend, at his or hcr own expense, the other pafiy against a.ny claim, action, or proceeding that is
brought seeking to hold the other party liable on account ofthe debt, including the payment of
reasolable attorney's fees illculled by the other party in defending against any such alleged
liability.

Warranty ofDisclosure ofAssots and Debts

29. Each party wa.(ants to the other that (1) all community assets and debts ofwhich he or
she has any knowledge have been addressed in this Agreement, (2) that he or she is not
possessed of or entitled to any community assets of any kind or description that have not been

disposed ofby this Agreement, and (3) that he or she has not incuned any community debts or
obligations odrer than those disposed ofby this Agreement.

Warranty Against Additional Debts

30. Each paty walaanls to the other that he or she has not incurred, and will not inour, any
debt as to which the other is, or may become, liable, olher than those debts addressed in this
AgreemenL

PA\MENT OF TAXES
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Joint Income Tax Returns

31.1. The parties shall filejoint federal income tax return for the calendar year ending
December 31, 2012.

31.2. Husband shall be responsible for the preparation ofthejointtax return. Wife shall
cooperate with Husband in the preparation olthe joint tax return by providing all infolmatiorl
necessary to prepare thejoint return (including but not limited to, W-2 forms from all employers,
statements of income from any soulce othgr thar employment, interest ftom bank accounts,
itemized deductions, and tax qedits). This information shall be provided no later than thifty
days before the deadline date for filing the return with the Intemal Revenue Service.

31.3. I-Iusband shall send the completed returns to Wife for approval and signature at least
fifteen days before the deadline date for filing the retum with the Intemal Revelue Service. If
the tax retum as prepared are not acceptable to Wife, Wife shall notify Husband ofher objections
within ten days before the filing deadline.

31.4. Should either party fail to cooperate in the preparation a.Dd filing ofthejoint return, that
pafty shall pay any additional tax liability, late pelalties, interest, attomey's or accountants' fees,

ard any olher fees of costs incuri€d as a result ofthe failure to cooperate.

31,5. Husband shall pay all expenses incuted in the preparatior and filing of rejoinlretum.

31,6, Husband and Wife shall equally pay all amou[ts owirlg, if a.ny, in comeclion widl the
joint income tax retum filed under fiis Agreement

31.7. If eidrer palty fails to comply with fie provisions ofthe paragraphs above, thatpa y shall
indennify the other party for, and hold the other paty harmless from, ary increased tax liability,
late penalties, interest, attomey's fges, accountart's fees, and any o rer fees or costs incurled by
or assessed against the o1-her paity as a result ofthe filst pafty's failure to comply.

Payment of Tax Deficiencies

32.1. Husband and Wife shall be equally responsible for paying all ta,\es, assessments,

liabilities, deficiencies, penalties, interest, and expenses (including, but not limited to, accounting
and legal fees) to any federal, state, oi local taxing authodties arising out ofaly review offlre
padies' personal income tax returns for any period for which the parties filedjoint returns.

32.2. Each party shall forward to the other party a copy ofany 1ax deficiency notice or other
conespondence or documenlation received ftom any federal, state, or local taxing authority
relating to any joint income tax retunN. Each party agrees to cooperate fully with the other and
to execute any document reasonably requested by the other, and to fu rish information and
testimony with respect to any tax liability asserted by ta,\ing authorities on anyjoint retum.

32.3 After the Divorce, each party shall be responsible for their own taxes, interest penalties

and expenses.
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Allocation of Tax Refund

33. Any tax refund recaiyed in connection wilh any joint inoome tan rc1um filed by the
pafiies shall be divided equally between the parties,

COSTS AND ATTORNEY FEES

Payment of Attornoy Fees and Costs

34. Each party shall be solely responsible for his or her own attorney fees and costs incrmed
in connection with the negotiation, prepaxation, and execution ofthis Agreement and in
connectiol with ary prcceeding for Dissolution of Malaiage that may be conmenced by either
party, Neither party shall be liable to the other party for any of the other pady's attorney fees or
costs.

Paymont ofFuture Attorney Fees ,rnd Costs to Preyailing Party

35.1. Ifeither party to this Agreement brings an aclion or proceeding to eDforce any provisioll
ofthis Agreement, or to enforce anyjudgrng[t or order made by a cout in corulectioll with d]is
Agreement, the prevailiDg party in that action or proceeding shall be entitled to reasonable
atloney fees and other reasonably oecgssary costs f1om 1he othgr party.

35.2. A party intending to bdng an actior or proceeding to enforce tl'ris Agreemenl shall not be
entitled to recover attoney fees and costs under this provision unless he or she first gives the
other party at least 10 wdtten notice before filing the actior or proceeding. The wdtten uotice
shall specify (1) whether the subsequent action or proceeding is to enforce the original terms of
the Agreemellt; (2) the reasols why the movirg palty believes the subsequenl acXion or
proceeding is necessary; (3) whether there is ary action that fie other party may take to avoid the
necessity for dre subsequent action or proceeding; and (4) a period of time withiu which the other
party may avoid the action or proceeding by taking the specified action. The first pafiy shall not
be entitled to attorney fees ard costs ifthe other party talrcs the specified action within the tine
specified in the notice,

GENERAL PROVISIONS

Representation by Counsel

36,1, Husband has been rcpresented in the negotiation and preparation ofthis Agreement by
his attomey of record Todd L. Torvinen, Esq., Esq. Wife has been represented in the negotiation
and pleparation oflhis Agreement by her attorney ofrecord Shawn B. Meador. This Agreement
was prepared by Husband's attomey. However, the rule of consfLrction that anbiguities are 10 be
construed in favor ofthe nondmfting pafy shall not be employed il'I the construction ofthis
Asreement.
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Execution of Instruments and Further Assurances

37. Husband and Wife shall each execute and deliver promptly on request to the other any
and all additional papers, documents, and o1h9r assruances, and shall do any and all aats and

things reasonably necessajy or proper to cary out their obligations under lhis Agreement. If
either paxty fails or refuses to comply with the requirements ofthis paragraph in a timely
manner, lllat party shall reimbulse the other party for all expeoses, including attorney fees and
costs, incuted as a result ofthat failure, and shall indemnify the other for any loss or liability
incured as a result ofthe breach. Further, in case ofabreach oflhe duties imposed by this
paragraph, the court may, on ex parte application, order the county clerk to execute any
document or other paper on behalf of the breaching pafty.

Release of All Claims

38. Except for the obligations contained in or expressly arising out ofthis Agreement, each
pa(y releases the otier from all interspousal obligations, and all claims to the property ofthe
other or otherwise. This release extends to all claims based on rights that llave accrued before or
during matiage, including, but not limited to, propedy and suppoft claims and claims sounding
in tod except Wife's obligation to defend and indemnify Husband for any malpractice claims.

Waivcr of Rights on Doath

39. Each parly waives all right to inherit in the estate ofthe other pafty on his or her death,
whether by testa.mentaxy disposition or intestacy, except under the terms of a will execuled afler
dre effective dale of this Agreement. Each pady fufther waives the right to claim a family
allowance or probate homestead, or to act as personal lepresenlalive ofthe estate ofthe olhef
unless norninated by anothe! persoo legally enlilled to dre right.

Indomnity and llold }larmless

40. Except for the obligations contained in or expressly arising out ofthis Agreement, each
party warrants to the other that he or she has not incuned, and shall not incur, any liability or
obligation for which dre other party is, or may be, liable. Except as may be expressly provided
in this Agreemenl, ifany claim, action, or proceeding, whether or not well founded, shall later be

brought seeking to hold one party liable on account ofany alleged debt, liability, act, or omission
ofthe other, the wananling pady shall, at his or her sole expense, defend the other against the
claim, action, or proceeding. The warranting party shall also indemnify the other and hold him
or her harmless against any loss or liability that he or she may incur as a result of the claim,
action, or proceeding, including attomey fees, costs, and expenses incuned in defending or
responding to ary such action, In the event Husband is sued for malpractice, Wife agrees to
defend and indemnifr Husbalrd for one half(1/2) the costs ofany defense andjudgment
Husband may purchase tail coverages of which Wife shall pay one half(1/2) of such costs.

Agreement Entered Into Voluntarily
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41. Husband and Wile represenl Lhat each, respeclively:

Is fully and aompletely informed as to the facts rclating to the subject matter of
this Agreement, and as to the rights and obligations ofboth pafiies;

Has entered into this Ageement freely and voluntarily, without any coercion,
undue influence, duress, or threat from ally person;

I{as carefully read each provision of this Agreement; and

Fully and completely understands each provision of the Agreement.

b.

d.

c.

Each party acknowledges that this Agreement is fair and equitable to both palties.

Modification and Reyocation

42, Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the tenns ofttis Agreement may be
modified or revoked only by a wdting signed by Husband and Wife that expressly refers to this
Agreement. The pa1'ties understand that this limitation is subject to the power of a court to
modify any provisions or orders at any time concerning the custody, visitation, and support of
their children.

Effect of Reconciliation

43 . lf alter the effective date of this Agreement, as set fofth in Paragraph 44, but beforc entry
ofany order or judgment ofthe coud based on it, Hrlsballd and Wife acknowledge and agree in
\rriting that their maniage has been restored and that they have mutually rescinded their iutent to
Dissolution ofMaffiage, the executory provisions ofthis Agreement are to remaiD ill force
uuless revoked or modified.

trffective Date

44. The effective date ofthis Agreement shall be the date on which it is last executed by
either party, as set forth below.

Entire Agreement

45 . This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of Husband and Wife concerning the
settlement oftheir respective rights and obligations arising out oftheir mauiage. It is a full and
final settlement ofall ofthose rights and obligations, including spousal support, propefiy rights,
liabilities, and otler interspousal claims that eidrer may have against dte other. This Agreement
supersedes any and all other agreements, oral or rrdtten, entered into between the parties before
the effective date of this Agreement conceining their respective dghts and obligations a sing out
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of their maniage. There are no enlorceable representations or waranties other than those set
forth in this Ageemenl.

Parties Bound

46. Except as otherwise expressly provided, this Agreement shall be binding on, and shall
inure to the benefit of, the respective beneficiaries, legatees, devisees, heirs, representatives,
executors, administators, assigns, and successors in interest ofHusband and Wife.

Effect of Partial Invalidity

Ifany provision ofthis Agreement is held by any courl to be invalid, void, or
unenforceable, that provision shall be deemed to be struck from the Agreement and the
remainder ofthe Agreement shall be unaffected and shall remain in full force and effect.

Waiver of Breach

47. No waiver ofany breach ofthis A$eement or default uDder it shall be deemed to be a
waiver of any subsequent breach or default of the same or similar natue. No waivcr of any ghts
under this Agreement shall be deemed to be a waiver for all time ofthose rights, but shall be
considered only as to the specific events surourding that waiver.

Paragraph Titles and Intorprotation

48. Paragraph xitles have been used thrcughout this Agreement for couvenience and reference
only. They arc not intended to set fofth substantive provisions, and shall not be used in any
manner whatsoever in the interyrctation ofthe Agreement.

GoYerning Law

49. This Agreement has been drafled, ard shall be executed, entirely widrin the State of
Nevada and shall be govemed by and inlerpreted and enforced under the law of[re State of
Nevada as that law sta.nds on the effective date of the Agreement. Interyretation shall not be
affected by any changes in that law after that date The parlies understand, however, that child
custody and child support orders are subject to state and federal laws that determine and limit
state court jurisdiction to make and modify these orders, and do not, by this provision, intend to
affect the application of those laws.

Advice Regarding Future Property Rights

50. The parlies acknowledge that they have been advised to review their wills, insurance
policies, retirement benefit plans, oredit cards ard other credit accounts and reports, and other
matters that they may want to change in view of their dissolution of marriage. The paxties
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further acknowledge thal they have been advised to review all property rights ard employment
benefits that have survivorship or inledtance features, such as life insurance policies, pensions,
intq vivos tusts, joint tenancies in real and pgrsonal property, and bant accounts, to ansule that
their present intentions are accurately exprgsscd in the goveming insfuncnts,

Each undersigned party agrc€s to the terms and conditions ofthis Agreement, effective as

ofthe date the last party signs,

DAnED fis 10 day or 4oYl ,'zorz . 

^ ./1 A /

flr^* t-,(lntlA'-
Pierre A. Hascheff

DATEDthis #!ay of g4r.,2013.

lhqnl't-fwzJlmwm

-

Lynqa Lee nascneII
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ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

STATEOFNEVADA )
) ss.

couNTYoFWASHOE )

":& /^ I
On this ,U dayof arQ-tr, .2013,persoDa11y appeared before me, a Notary

Public. PIERRE A. HASiffSfT;i*na[y k"own (or proved)io me to be the person whose
name is subscribed to the above Marital Settlement Agrcemekt, who acknowledged that he
execJjJ:ed lhe Mafital Settlement Agteement.

iffi#ffi*rffil
!,,,,)*:,.19Pj-{ili;,Rl:r*ml|fl"9:"TlI!

STATEOFNEVADA )
) ss,

COUNTYOFWASHOE )

^.-/ -,
On this .l > day ot >ed'' ,2\l3,personally appeared before me, a Notary

Public, LYNDA LEE FIASCHEFF; personally known (or proved) to me to be the person whose
name is subscribed to lhe aboye Marital Settlemenl Agreement,who acknowledged that she
e\ecuted lhe Marital Settlement Asrcement.

| ,rp-. S"rn
Nolary Public u

t
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Section 7:Asset and debt Chad

Cq[,IMUN Y'
TOI; lJU9FAira IT

ASSETS:
CASHi

1 PAH Chtd Checking US Bank s96) 6 400 3,200 3 200

2 PAH Savnos US Bank (6551 & {3704) 34 000 17,000 17 000

3 R/versrde LLC US BAnL (offce) 13825) 4 000 2,000 2,000

4 PAH LLC LlS Ban[(Az house)(8156) 4 400 2,244 2,24O

5 PAH Justce CtUS Bai[(68s9) 434 217 217

6 Revo.abe T,ustUS Banh (7ll3)8 9696 2 r0 000 r05 000 105 000

7 Revocab e Tr!st US Bank (9274) &4371 18 000 9 000 9,000

I Lvnda checkinq US Bank 3 000 1 500 1,500

I Subtotal 240,234 '140,117 140, 7 0 0

10 INVESTMEN

11 LPL Financia (slock accoLrnt) 3439 161 773 80,886 80 887

12 161,773 80,886 80,887 0 0

13

5 000 2,540 2 500

15 Subtotal s,000 2,500 2,500 0 0

16

'17 560 000 280,000 280 000

1A 6236 A p ne 360,000 0 360 000

19 905 Pinerdge r20 000 120 000

20 T029 R ve|side (less sell exp) 500,000 250,000 250 000

21 2555 [,4anzan la 760,000 760,000

22 520,000 200,000 260 000

23 0

24 2,820,000 1,550,000 1,270,000 0

25

AUTOs& REI lt FAT ON,AI- t-l

,'ro99
;i!l0rr

9I

26 20 l3 Jeep t herofee 34,000 34 000

27 2011 RAV 4 20,000 10 000 10,000

28 2008 Jeep Liberly 12,000 6 000 6,000

29 2006 Lexus RX330 T8 000 T8,000

30 Subtotal 84,000 50,000 34,000 0 0

PER$ONAI

32 Fun lure l-l Nlanzanita 30 000 15,000 t5 000

33 26 000 13,000 I3 000

34 Foolball & Baseball Tckets 3 000 T,500 1 500

35 Subtotal 59,000 29,500 29,500 0 0

36
.::.

37 rcr,4A (457 Pra 1 1,610 5,805 5 805

38 PAH Profit Shadng 328,474 164,239 164 239

39 24,720 0 24 T2A

40 20114 2A 114
L Yf r'foup rermLre nsu.ance tozcuiuuul

Value 0

42 Subtotal 384,922 190,158 '194,764 0 0

43

IOTAL ASSETS 3,794,929 2,043,161 1,751,768 0 0

45

Exhibii 1 Hascheff MSA
{a^ 'tFpvispd e/3/r3 y
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Section TiAsset and debt Chart

Cott irtuNlif !!!i!:!:!:!:

}IAI HUSB;4 d::!i WJFE: I{U9BAND.
46 DFEI;iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii;iiiiiiiiii

46'e€.€neFsl
1!hdi"4F.ll9$PiliE.i!
E6setaoo1/ej: ::::: : : : i!

$
f lfi..n:t!!lrl|i::::;:::
Utq{tlY;P.lii!4-ult. i

i

]ll
l

jjilj47
.

lli
48 Chase {lllanzanita) 390,000 390,000 0

49 Qucken Loan (Alpine) 265,000 0 265,000

50

51 Subtotal 655,000 390,000 265,000 0 0

52
at i1 1(5 U q|l.94fi r9 ft qI91I

53 Chas€ Card (W 6,000 3 000 3,000
54 AI\IEX (Bus/Office) 5,000 5 000

Visa 0

0

57 Sam's Club 3,600 1 800 1,800

58

59
60
61 Subtotal 14,600 9,800 4,800 0 0

62 TOTAL DEBT (add lin€6 23 and 26) 668,600 399,800 269,800 0 0

NET WORTH (TOTAL ASSETS,llno 32
MINUS TOTAL DEBT.llne 49) s?,126,329 $1,643,361 $1,481,968 $0 $o

($80,6971 $80,697
Equallzod $1,562,664 $t,562,665

6
ur

Exhibit I HaschefitvlSA Revised 9/3/13
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IN THE FAMILY DIVISION 
 

OF THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT FOR THE STATE OF NEVADA  
 

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 
 

 
 
PIERRE A. HASCHEFF, 
 
  Plaintiff, 
         Case No. DV13-00656 
vs. 
         Dept. No. 12 
LYNDA HASCHEFF, 
 
  Defendant. 
____________________________/ 

 
ORDER SETTING MOTION RE: MSA FOR HEARING;  

ORDER HOLDING IN ABEYANCE  
MOTION FOR ORDER TO ENFORCE AND OR FOR AN ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE  

  
 The Court considers two motions for purposes of this Order. 

 First, before this Court is Defendant Lynda Hascheff’s Motion for Clarification or 

Declaratory Relief Regarding Terms of MSA and Decree (“MSA Motion”) filed on June 16, 2020.  

Plaintiff Pierre A. Hascheff filed an Opposition to Motion for Clarification or Declaratory Relief 

Regarding Terms of MSA and Decree (“Opposition to MSA Motion”) on July 6, 2020.  Ms. 

Hascheff then filed a Reply in Support of Motion for Clarification or Declaratory Relief Regarding 

Terms of MSA and Decree (“Reply to MSA Motion”) on July 13, 2020, and the matter was 

submitted thereafter. 

 Second, before this Court is Judge Hascheff’s Motion for Order to Show Cause, or in the 

Alternative, to Enforce the Court’s Orders (“OSC Motion”) filed on July 8, 2020.  Ms. Hascheff 

filed an Opposition to Motion for Order to Show Cause, or in the Alternative, to Enforce the 

Court’s Orders (“Opposition to OSC Motion”) filed on July 17, 2020.  Judge Hascheff then filed a 

Reply to Opposition to Motion for Order to Show Cause, or in the Alternative, to Enforce the 

F I L E D
Electronically
DV13-00656

2020-09-09 10:02:25 AM
Jacqueline Bryant
Clerk of the Court

Transaction # 8058279
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Court’s Orders (“Reply to OSC Motion”), and the matter was submitted thereafter. 

 On September 30, 2013, Ms. Hascheff and Judge Hascheff entered into a Marital Settlement 

Agreement (“MSA”) that was approved, adopted, merged and incorporated into the Decree of 

Divorce (“Decree”) on November 15, 2013.  Specifically, the MSA contains an indemnification 

clause in the event of a malpractice claim against Judge Hascheff (“MSA § 40”).   

A. Motion for Clarification or Declaratory Relief Regarding Terms of MSA and Decree 

 In her MSA Motion, Ms. Hascheff asks this Court to enter an Order clarifying MSA § 40 

that she is only responsible for fees incurred in a malpractice action against Judge Hascheff, and 

that she is not responsible for the fees or costs he chose to incur to have personal counsel protect his 

interests in connection with his role as a percipient witness in the Jaksick Action.  Moreover, Ms. 

Hascheff asks that Judge Hascheff be obligated to pay the costs and fees Ms. Hascheff incurred in 

connection with her attempts to obtain information, respond to his demands and engage in motion 

practice to establish her rights and obligations. 

 Ms. Hascheff contends on January 15, 2020, Judge Hascheff sent her an undated letter 

demanding that she indemnify him for legal fees and costs incurred in connection with Judge 

Hascheff's role as a percipient witness in the Jaksick Action, a lawsuit to which he was not a named 

party.  Ms. Hascheff asserts the language in MSA § 40, by its clear, express, and unambiguous 

terms, does not require Ms. Hascheff to finance Judge Hascheff's legal fees and costs he elected to 

incur as a percipient  witness.  Ms. Hascheff contends Judge Hascheff did not have the right to 

make the decision to protect his interests as a percipient witness, and then demand that she finance 

his decision, without fully advising her of the circumstances and gaining her agreement and consent 

in advance.  

 Ms. Hascheff alleges on December 26, 2018, Judge Hascheff was sued for malpractice by 

his former client, Todd Jaksick, individually and as trustee of two trusts.  Ms. Hascheff claims 

Judge Hascheff made the deliberate decision not to notify her despite the potential financial risk 

pursuant to MSA § 40, but rather waited for over a year, until January 15, 2020, to inform her.  Ms. 

Hascheff asserts Judge Hascheff and his former client eventually entered an agreement to 

stay the malpractice action until the Jaksick Action was resolved. 
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Ms. Hascheff posits MSA § 40 does not require her  to finance Judge Hascheff’s 

litigation choices as a percipient witness in a lawsuit to which he was not a party.  Ms. 

Hascheff states if Judge Hascheff believed it would be "helpful " or "prudent " for him to 

have counsel to assist him as a percipient witness, he had an obligation to consult with 

her before incurring the expenses while being advised of the underlying facts, the 

litigation risks and why retention of counsel would be appropriate so that she could 

make an informed decision about whether to share in the costs .  

 In his Opposition to MSA Motion, Judge Hascheff highlights MSA § 40 must be read in 

conjunction with the entire section, and MSA § 40 unambiguously indicates that if any claim, 

action, or proceeding, whether or not well-founded shall later be brought seeking to hold one party 

liable on account of any alleged debt, liability, act, or omission the other party at his or her sole 

expense must defend the other against said claim, action or proceeding.  Judge Hascheff asserts 

MSA § 40 requires a party must also indemnify the other and hold him or her harmless against any 

loss or liability that he or she may incur as a result of the claim, action or proceeding including 

attorney's fees, costs and expenses incurred in defending or responding to such action.  Judge 

Hascheff also notes as a subset and part of that all-encompassing language providing a full defense 

and complete unconditional indemnification a provision was added that in the event said claim, 

action or proceeding, involved a malpractice action whether or not well-founded, it obligated the 

other party to pay only one-half the defense costs and indemnify only one-half of any judgment if 

any, entered against said party. 

 Judge Hascheff maintains MSA § 40 does not include a notice provision.  Judge Hascheff 

maintains it was critical to defend the claims in the trust action as they likely become res judicata 

and collateral estoppel defenses in the malpractice action and eliminate Ms. Hascheff being 

required to pay one-half of the likely much higher defense costs and the judgment. Judge Hascheff 

claims he needed to engage counsel early to address and cut off any possible claims arising out of 

or determined in the underlying litigation should not be subject to question under the circumstances.  

Judge Hascheff alleges he did not keep the potential for a malpractice claim secret from Ms. 

Hascheff because he believed that the underlying trust action would be resolved, and the 

malpractice action filed in December 2018 would eventually be dismissed.   
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 Judge Hascheff contends the fact that Allied World insurance company picked up the 

defense and paid defense fees in the trust litigation of $2,500, although not required under his 

insurance policy, conclusively shows that Judge Hascheff’s involvement in the underlying trust 

case primarily involved potential malpractice claims. 

 Judge Hascheff asserts it is not uncommon for an indemnitee to remain involved for several 

years in the underlying litigation and then once litigation is concluded and the damages are 

ascertained; then and only then will the indemnitee notify the indemnitor for of the obligation to 

pay said damages.  Therefore, Judge Hascheff claims he did not breach his fiduciary duty, if any, by 

waiting to inform Ms. Hascheff of the malpractice action until after the jury decided the legal 

claims in the underlying trust litigation.  

 Judge Hascheff also argues Ms. Hascheff has violated Section 35 (“MSA § 35”) which 

clearly provides that any party intending to bring an action or proceeding to enforce the MSA shall 

not be entitled to recover attorney's fees and costs unless she first gives the other party at least 10 

days written notice before filing the action or proceeding. 

 In her Reply to MSA Motion, Ms. Hascheff emphasizes a strict interpretation of MSA § 40 

does not cover Judge Hascheff’s incurred legal expenses.  Ms. Hascheff states the indemnity 

language could have been written to say that she will indemnify Judge Hascheff for any fees and 

costs that he, in his sole and unilateral discretion, believe are reasonable, necessary, and related in 

any way to any potential malpractice action, but that is not the language his lawyer drafted, nor is it 

the agreement the parties signed.  As a result, Ms. Hascheff states she contractually agreed to pay 

half the costs of defense of the malpractice action which was immediately stayed with no fees 

incurred. 

 Ms. Hascheff asserts had Judge Hascheff given her the common courtesy of promptly 

informing her of the circumstances, sharing with her the underlying facts and risks they faced, and 

consulting with her about the most appropriate way for them to jointly approach the problem, they 

may have been able to reach agreement to avoid this dispute and all of these fees.  

B. Motion for Order to Show Cause, or in the Alternative, to Enforce the Court’s Orders 

 In his OSC Motion, Judge Hascheff moves this Court: (1) To issue an order for Ms. 

Hascheff to show cause as to why she intentionally disobeys the Decree; (2) To enforce the terms of 
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the parties' incorporated MSA, and order the payment of the indemnification; and, (3) Order Ms. 

Hascheff pay Judge Hascheff's attorney fees and costs whether this matter proceeds as contempt, or 

as an order for enforcement upon affidavit from counsel. 

 Judge Hascheff asserts Ms. Hascheff chooses to willfully disobey the Decree and MSA by 

making “ill-advised and even nonsensical arguments” in her MSA Motion as a course of conduct to 

“‘gain leverage and delay payment.’”   

 Judge Hascheff states in the event the Court determines Ms. Hascheff’s actions do not rise 

to the level of contempt, Judge Hascheff asks the Court to enforce its orders by requiring Judge 

Hascheff to pay the required one half indemnification amount to Judge Hascheff in the sum of 

$4,924.05 (plus a percentage of any later accrued and accruing fees and costs) pursuant to MSA § 

40, and award Judge Hascheff attorney's fees pursuant to MSA § 35.  

 In her Opposition to OSC Motion, Ms. Hascheff contends there are no clear and 

unambiguous Orders of this Court that she has allegedly refused to honor.  Ms. Hascheff 

emphasizes the dispute is whether the simple and unambiguous language of the parties’ MSA and 

Decree, requires Ms. Hascheff to pay the fees Judge Hascheff demands.   

 Ms. Hascheff asserts since the Decree does not clearly and unambiguously require her to 

pay those fees, Ms. Hascheff could not be held in contempt as a matter of law.  Ms. Hascheff 

asserts if interpretation is required to obtain the result Judge Hascheff seeks, the language on which 

he relies cannot be so clear and unambiguous as to support a contempt motion - no matter how 

reasonable the requested interpretation. Ms. Hascheff claims since there is a dispute about the 

meaning of their contract and the parties' respective rights and obligations, Ms. Hascheff, in good 

faith, sought clarification through her MSA Motion so that she would know exactly what her legal 

obligations are.  

 In his Reply to OSC Motion, Judge Hascheff maintains rather than resolving a dispute of 

approximately $5,000, Ms. Hascheff has embarked on an unfortunate litigation track where she 

undoubtedly already incurred fees in excess of $5,000, and likely will incur attorney’s fees.  Judge 

Hascheff contends Ms. Hascheff also unnecessarily caused him to incur substantial legal fees, and 

has even offered to accept minimal payments without interest and without incurring any legal fees.  

 Judge Hascheff posits Ms. Hascheff fails to cite any case where a court would distinguish 
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between a contractual indemnity in an MSA from any other indemnity obligation, and a settlement 

agreement is construed as any other contract and governed by the principles of contract law. Judge 

Hascheff maintains Ms. Hascheff’s assertion that she has no obligation to pay half the defense costs 

and/or indemnify until her conditions are met are not expressed in the MSA, and Ms. Hascheff’s 

position that she has some “implied” right or “conditions precedent” to her obligation to pay is 

entirely inconsistent with the MSA or existing caselaw. 

Law  

A. Declaratory Relief Standard 

 A party must meet four elements before declaratory relief can be granted: 

1) there must exist a justiciable controversy; that is to say, a 

controversy in which a claim of right is asserted against one who 

has an interest in contesting it; (2) the controversy must be 

between persons whose interests are adverse; (3) the party seeking 

declaratory relief must have a legal interest in the controversy, 

that is to say, a legally protectable interest; and (4) the issue 

involved in the controversy must be ripe for judicial 

determination. 

 

MB Am., Inc. v. Alaska Pac. Leasing, 132 Nev. Adv. Op. 8, 367 P.3d 1286, 1291 (2016).  

Moreover, any person whose rights, status, or other legal relations "are affected by a statute . . . may 

have determined any question of construction" of that statute. NRS 30.040(1); Prudential Ins. Co. 

of Am. v. Ins. Comm'r, 82 Nev. 1, 5, 409 P.2d 248, 250 (1966) (declaratory relief is available when 

a controversy concerning the meaning of a statute arises).  "Whether a determination is proper in an 

action for declaratory relief is a matter within the trial judge's discretion that will not be disturbed 

on appeal unless abused." El Capitan Club v. Fireman's Fund Ins. Co., 89 Nev. 65, 68, 506 P.2d 

426, 428 (1973). 

B. Interpretation of MSA Standard. 

 A settlement agreement, which is a contract, is governed by principles of contract law.  

Mack v. Estate of Mack, 125 Nev. 80, 95, 206 P.3d 98, 108 (2009).  As such, a settlement 

agreement will not be an enforceable contract unless there is “an offer and acceptance, meeting of 

the minds, and consideration.”  Id.  Generally, when a contract is clear on its face, it ‘will be 

construed from the written language and enforced as written.’” Buzz Stew, LLC v. City of N. Las 
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Vegas, 131 Nev. 1, 7, 341 P.3d 646, 650 (2015) (citing Canfora v. Coast Hotels & Casinos, Inc., 

121 Nev. 771, 776, 121 P.3d 599, 603 (2005)).  The court has no authority to alter the terms of an 

unambiguous contract.  Canfora, 121 Nev. at 776, 121 P.3d at 603.   

 Whether a contract is ambiguous likewise presents a question of law. Galardi v. Naples 

Polaris, LLC, 129 Nev. 306, 309, 301 P.3d 364, 366 (2013) (citing Margrave v. Dermody Props., 

110 Nev. 824, 827, 878 P.2d 291, 293 (1994)). A contract is ambiguous if its terms may reasonably 

be interpreted in more than one way, but ambiguity does not arise simply because the parties 

disagree on how to interpret their contract.  Id. (citing Anvui, L.L.C. v. G.L. Dragon, L.L.C., 123 

Nev. 212, 215, 163 P.3d 405, 407 (2007); Parman v. Petricciani, 70 Nev. 427, 430–32, 272 P.2d 

492, 493–94 (1954)).   

 Marital agreements are “enforceable unless unconscionable, obtained through fraud, 

misrepresentation, material nondisclosure or duress.” Furer v. Furer, 126 Nev. 712, 367 P.3d 770 

(2010) (citing Sogg v. Nevada State Bank, 108 Nev. 308, 312, 832 P.2d 781, 783–84 (1992)).   

 After merger, the district court may enforce the provisions of the divorce decree by using its 

contempt power. Friedman v. Friedman, 128 Nev. 897, 381 P.3d 613 (2012) (citing Hildahl v. 

Hildahl, 95 Nev. 657, 662–63, 601 P.2d 58, 61–62 (1979)). The district court may interpret the 

language of the divorce decree in order to resolve ambiguity. Id. (citing Kishner v. Kishner, 93 Nev. 

220, 225, 562 P.2d 493, 496 (1977)).   

C. Order to Show Cause for Contempt of Court Standard. 

Pursuant to NRS 22.030(2), if a contempt is not committed in the immediate view and 

presence of the court or judge at chambers, an affidavit must be presented to the court or judge of 

the facts constituting the contempt, or a statement of the facts by the masters or arbitrators.  The 

requirement of an affidavit is confirmed by case law, specifically requiring an affidavit must state 

facts specific enough to allow the Court to proceed to be submitted at the Contempt proceeding, 

which is necessary to give the court subject matter jurisdiction.  See Awad v. Wright, 106 Nev. 407, 

794 P.2d 713 (1990) (overruled on other grounds); Philips v. Welch, 12 Nev. 158 (1887); Strait v. 

Williams, 18 Nev. 430 (1884).  Contempt statutes are to be strictly construed based upon the 

criminal nature of a contempt proceeding.  Ex Parte Sweeney, 18 Nev. 71 (1883). 

AA 0849



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

 
 

8 
 

 

The penalties for contempt include a monetary fine, not to exceed $500.00, or 

imprisonment, not to exceed 25 days, or both.  See NRS 22.100(2).  In addition to the penalties set 

forth above the Court may require the person to pay to the party seeking to enforce the writ, order, 

rule or process the reasonable expenses incurred by the party as a result of the contempt.   See NRS 

22.100(3). 

The moving party must make a prima facie showing that the non-moving had the ability to 

comply with the Court order and that the violation of the order was willful.  Rodriguez v. District 

Court, 120 Nev. 798, 809, 102 P.3d 41, 49 (2004).  In order for contempt to be found, the Court 

order “must be clear and unambiguous, and must spell out the details of compliance in clear, 

specific, and unambiguous terms so that the person will readily know exactly what duties or 

obligations are imposed on him.”  Cunningham v. District Court, 102 Nev. 551, 559-60, 729 P.2d 

1328, 1333-34 (1986).     

Order  

 The Court shall hold the MSA Motion for a hearing.  After reviewing the operative MSA, 

filed papers, and exhibits, the Court finds argument regarding MSA § 35, § 37, and § 40 necessary 

to resolve the ongoing issues articulated in the MSA Motion and OSC Motion.   

 Pursuant to the MSA, MSA § 35, § 37, and § 40 provide: 

35.1. If either party to this Agreement brings an action or 

proceeding to enforce any provision of this Agreement, or to 

enforce any judgment or order made by a court in connection with 

this Agreement, the prevailing party in that action or proceeding 

shall be entitled to reasonable attorney fees and other reasonably 

necessary costs from the other party. 

 

35.2. A party intending to bring an action or proceeding to 

enforce this Agreement shall not be entitled to recover attorney 

fees and costs under this provision unless he or she first gives the 

other party at least 10 [sic] written notice before filing the 

action or proceeding.  The written notice shall specify (1) 

whether the subsequent action or proceeding is to enforce the 

original terms of the Agreement; (2) the reasons why the 

moving party believes the subsequent action or proceeding is 

necessary; (3) whether there is any action that the other party 

may take to avoid the necessity for the subsequent action or 

proceeding; and (4) a period of time within which the other 

party may avoid the action or proceeding by taking the 

specified action.  The first party shall not be entitled to attorney 
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fees and costs if the other party takes the specified action within the 

time specified in the notice. 

 

… 

 

37. Husband and Wife shall each execute and deliver promptly on 

request to the other any and all additional papers, documents, 

and other assurances, and shall do any and all acts and things 

reasonably necessary or proper to carry out their obligations 

under this Agreement. If either party fails or refuses to comply with 

the requirements of this paragraph in a timely manner, that party 

shall reimburse the other party for all expenses, including 

attorney fees and costs, incurred as a result of that failure, and 

shall indemnify the other for any loss or liability incurred as a 

result of the breach. Further, in case of a breach of the duties 

imposed by this paragraph, the court may, on ex parte application, 

order the county clerk to execute any document or other paper on 

behalf of the breaching party. 

 

… 

 

40. Except for the obligations contained in or expressly arising out of 

this Agreement, each party warrants to the other that he or she 

has not incurred, and shall not incur, any liability or obligation 

for which the other party is, or may be, liable. Except as may be 

expressly provided in this Agreement, if any claim, action, or 

proceeding, whether or not well founded, shall later be brought 

seeking to hold one party liable on account of any alleged debt, 

liability, act, or omission of the other, the warranting party shall, at 

his or her sole expense, defend the other against the claim, action, or 

proceeding. The warranting party shall also indemnify the other and 

hold him or her harmless against any loss or liability that he or she 

may incur as a result of the claim, action, or proceeding, including 

attorney fees, costs, and expenses incurred in defending or  

responding to any such action. In the event Husband is sued for 

malpractice, Wife agrees to defend and indemnify Husband for one 

half (1/2) the costs of any defense and judgment Husband may 

purchase tail coverages of which Wife shall pay one half (1/2) of such 

costs. 

 

 The Court highlights aspects of these sections to guide counsel where the Court is directing 

its attention.  The Court is of the impression MSA § 40 does encompass legal fees incurred by 

Judge Hascheff as a witness in the Jaksick Action, and the stayed lawsuit where he is sued 

individually.  However, the Court takes issue with Judge Hascheff’s unilateral decision to 

not provide notice to Ms. Hascheff of his exposure to malpractice liability until January 
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2020.        

 Counsel should be prepared to argue, inter alia, the following issues: (1) whether notice 

pursuant to MSA § 35 was properly provided by both parties to collect attorney’s fees regarding 

enforcement of the MSA; (2) whether both parties promptly delivered information to each other 

pursuant to MSA § 37 to effectuate, specifically, MSA § 40; and (3) whether MSA § 40 contains an 

ongoing obligation for Judge Hascheff to provide notice to Ms. Hascheff of any malpractice claim, 

action, or proceeding.     

 Furthermore, the disposition of the OSC Motion is inextricably linked to the ruling in the 

MSA Motion.  As a result, the Court shall hear argument on the OSC at the same time and hold in  

abeyance its ruling on the OSC Motion until adjudication of the MSA Motion.   

Counsel for the parties shall contact Department 12’s Judicial Assistant, Amy Hodgson, to 

set the matter at amy.hodgson@washoecourts.us within ten days of the date of this order.   

 GOOD CAUSE APPEARING, IT IS SO ORDERED.   

 DATED this 9th day of September, 2020. 

        
       _______________________ 

       Sandra A. Unsworth  

       District Judge  

DV13-00656 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

 

            Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of the Second Judicial District Court 

in and for the County of Washoe, and that on September 9, 2020, I deposited in the county mailing 

system for postage and mailing with the United States Postal Service in Reno, Nevada, or via e-

filing, a true copy of the foregoing document addressed as follows: 

 

ELECTRONIC FILING: 

 

SHAWN MEADOR, ESQ., for LYNDA HASCHEFF 

TODD TORVINEN, ESQ., for PIERRE HASCHEFF 

 

 

 

 
       _________________________ 

       Judicial Assistant  
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MARK J. CONNOT (10010) 
FOX ROTHSCHILD LLP 
1980 Festival Plaza Drive, Suite 700 
Las Vegas, Nevada 89135 
(702) 262-6899 telephone 
(702) 597-5503 fax 
mconnot@foxrothschild.com 
 
R. KEVIN SPENCER (Admitted PHV) 
Texas Bar Card No. 00786254 
ZACHARY E. JOHNSON (Admitted PHV) 
Texas Bar Card No. 24063978 
SPENCER &  JOHNSON, PLLC 
500 N. Akard Street, Suite 2150 
Dallas, Texas 75201 
kevin@dallasprobate.com 
zach@dallasprobate.com 
Attorneys for Respondent/Counter-Petitioner  
Wendy A. Jaksick 

SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT 
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA 

In the Matter of the Administration of the 
SSJ’S ISSUE TRUST,  

CASE NO.: PR17-00445 
DEPT. NO.  15 
 

In the Matter of the Administration of the 
SAMUEL S. JAKSICK, JR. FAMILY TRUST,  

CASE NO.: PR17-00446 
DEPT. NO.  15 
 

WENDY JAKSICK,  

Respondent and Counter-Petitioner, 

 v. 

TODD B. JAKSICK, INDIVIDUALLY, AS CO-
TRUSTEE OF THE SAMUEL S. JAKSICK, JR. 
FAMILY TRUST, AND AS TRUSTEE OF THE 
SSJ’S ISSUE TRUST; MICHAEL S. KIMMEL, 
INDIVIDUALLY AND AS CO-TRUSTEE OF THE 
SAMUEL S. JAKSICK, JR. FAMILY TRUST; 
AND STANLEY S. JAKSICK, INDIVIDUALLY 
AND AS CO-TRUSTEE OF THE SAMUEL S. 
JAKSICK, JR. FAMILY TRUST; KEVIN RILEY, 
INDIVIDUALLY AND AS FORMER TRUSTEE 
OF THE SAMUEL S. JAKSICK, JR. FAMILY 
TRUST AND TRUSTEE OF THE WENDY A. 
JAKSICK 2012 BHC FAMILY TRUST, 

Petitioners and Counter-Respondents. 
 

 
WENDY A. JAKSICK’S OPPOSITION 
TO PETITION FOR INSTRUCTIONS 
REGARDING SETTLEMENT 
AGREEMENT 
 
 
 

 

 Wendy A. Jaksick (“Wendy”) files this Wendy A. Jaksick’s Opposition to Petition for 

Instructions Regarding Settlement Agreement (the “Opposition”) in response to the Petition for 
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Instructions filed by Todd Jaksick, as Co-Trustee of the Samuel s. Jaksick, Jr. Family Trust (the 

“Family Trust” ) and as Trustee of the SSJ’s Issue Trust (“Issue Trust” ), and Stanley Jaksick, as 

Co-Trustee of the Family Trust, and respectfully shows the Court as follows: 

I . STATEMENT OF RELEVANT FACTS 

Todd and Kimmel Initiated This Litigation.  On August 2, 2017, Todd Jaksick (“Todd”) 

and Michael Kimmel (“Kimmel” ), in their capacities as Co-Trustees of the Family Trust, 

(collectively, “Petitioners”) filed Petitions for Confirmation of Trustees and Admission of Trust to 

the Jurisdiction of the Court, and for Approval of Accountings and Other Trust Administration 

Matters (the “Original Petition”) instituting the current litigation involving the Family Trust and 

Wendy (the “Lawsuit”).   The Original Petition sought Court approval of purported trust 

accountings for the period April 2013 through December 31, 2016 (the “Purported Trust 

Accounting”), as well as ratification and Court approval of numerous actions taken by Co-

Trustees relieving Trustees from liability from such actions.1  The Petition also sought approval 

of numerous agreements intended to modify the Family Trust and a release of all liability for 

actions taken pursuant to such agreements.2   

Stan’s Claims Against Todd.  Stanley Jaksick (“Stan”), in his capacity as Co-Trustee of 

the Family Trust, refused to join the Purported Trust Accountings and refused to join and pursue 

the Original Petition.  Instead, on October 10, 2017, Stanley filed an opposition to the Original 

Petition (“Stan’s Opposition”) including objections to the approval of the Purported Trust 

Accountings and other claims concerning the administration of Trusts.  Stan, the third and only 

remaining Co-Trustee of the Family Trust, did not just refuse to endorse the defective accountings 

filed by his Co-Trustees for Court approval by remaining silent, but affirmatively contested them.  

Stan was a Co-Trustee with insider knowledge and knew the Purported Accountings were 

deficient, objected to Todd’s use of his purported Indemnification Agreement to pay his personal 

expenses from the Family Trust, and knew other actions of the Co-Trustees were improper. 

Wendy Forced to Act.  As a result of the Lawsuit, Wendy had no choice but to respond 

and assert all her claims concerning the Trusts, the administration of the Trusts, the purported 

                                                
1 Original Petition, p. 6. 
2 Original Petition, p. 12.   
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Indemnification Agreements and all other related matters or risk forfeiting her rights and losing 

her claims.  Wendy also sued all the Trustees in their individual capacities to ensure any 

judgment payable or enforceable against the Trustees in their Individual capacities would be 

valid and enforceable.  Stan was in Wendy’s ear the entire time telling her how Todd and his 

family were benefiting from the Trusts at Wendy and her family’s expense and encouraging 

Wendy to pursue her claims.  Stan had to walk a “tight-rope”  as a Co-Trustee who had and 

was breaching his fiduciary duties in the administration of the Family Trust while suing his 

Co-Trustees, so he utilized Wendy to fight his proxy war with Todd.  Stan needed leverage to 

force his buy in to the $18 million plus Lake Tahoe property and to force Todd to continue to 

look the other way on Stan’s refusal to disclose the financial dealings of Montreux (the Family 

Trust entity Stan controls).    

Todd’s Claims Against Stan.  On October 12, 2018, Todd, filed Todd. B Jaksick’s, as 

a Beneficiary of the Samuel s. Jaksick, Jr. Family Trust, Petition for Reconveyance of Trust 

Assets (the “Todd’s Petition for Reconveyance”).  In Todd’s Petition for Reconveyance, Todd 

accused Stan of receiving funds that were property of the Family Trust, putting them in an 

entity wholly controlled by Stan to be used for Stan’s personal benefit and refusing to convey 

the funds to the Family Trust.      
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3 

The Settlement on Eve of Trial. The jury trial of all the pending legal claims between the 

Parties was originally scheduled to begin on February 4, 2019.  On January 31, 2019, Stan, 

Individually, as beneficiary and Co-Trustee of the Family Trust (“Stan”) and as Trustee of 

the 2013 Stanley Jaksick Revocable Family Trust (“Stan’s Trust” ) and Todd, Individually, 

as beneficiary and Co-Trustee of the Family Trust, as beneficiary and Trustee of the Issue 

Trust, manager of Incline TSS, LLC and Trustee of the Todd B. Jaksick Family Trust, TBJ 

Issue Trust, TBJ SC Trust, and TBJ Investment Trust (“Todd’s Trusts”), entered into the 

Settlement Agreement and Release (the “Settlement Agreement” ).   

Just days before trial, Todd and Stan, apparently, resolved all issues between them and 

their family trusts and appeared at trial as a united front against Wendy.  To support the image 

of a united front and the appearance that the Trustees were and had always been united against 

Wendy, the Trustees made every effort to suppress the disclosure of the Settlement Agreement 

to the Court and the Jury.  In fact, despite Kent Robison’s blatant misrepresentation to the 

Court during the October 14, 2020 hearing,4 the Settlement Agreement was not admitted 
                                                
3 See Todd’s Petition for Reconveyance, pp. 3-5 and 8. 
4 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 33, lines 10-14 (Kent Robison: “And counsel and I agreed that if it’ s going to 
be referred to, maybe the jury should see the whole thing, and we stipulated it into evidence. And the jury had the 
Settlement Agreement when it deliberated.” ) 
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into evidence and the Jury did not have it when it deliberated.5  

Instead, the Trustees fought its admission because they wanted the Jury and the Court to 

hear that Stan had some misunderstandings about Todd’s administration of the Family Trust and 

Issue Trust, but Todd and Stan were able to reasonably work out their differences concerning 

those misunderstandings.6  They also wanted to hide the fact that Stan had improperly acquired 

and kept funds belonging the Family Trust, utilized the trust funds for his own personal benefit, 

refused to disclose financial information and to fund the Family Trust from trust assets Stan 

controlled.7  They even wanted the Jury and the Court to hear and believe that Todd had 

gratuitously agreed not to seek the payment of the $4 million mortgage on his personal residence 

under his purported Indemnification Agreement.   

The incentive for Todd to enter into the Settlement Agreement with Stan was great.  It is 

not difficult to imagine the starkly different impression the jury would have received if Stan’s 

counsel were sitting on Wendy’s side of the courtroom and were seeking to establish many of 

the same claims as Wendy against Todd.8  Stan understood this and used it as leverage to obtain 

substantial personal benefits for entering the Settlement Agreement.  

I I . POINTS AND AUTHORITIES 

Trustees Seek Court Approval.  Now Todd and Stan come seeking the Court’s blessing 

and approval of their self-serving, self-dealing, breach of fiduciary duty Settlement Agreement.  

                                                
5 Exhibit 2, Master Jury Trial Exhibit List, Print Date 03/04/2019, p. 57, Proposed Exhibit No. 457. 
6 See Exhibit 3, Trial Transcript, 02/20/2019, 168:11-21. 
7 See Todd’s Petition for Reconveyance, pp. 3-5; Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 73, lines 16-24 (Kent Robison: 
“And there’s no question that the trustees were very concerned about not getting financial information about 
Montreux Development (sic) 2018, 2019, and certainly through the trial and ever since. So if I said something to 
suggest that we didn’ t know were weren’ t getting money or financials from Montreux, I apologize. That’s conceded. 
We absolutely did know. And, yes, there was a strategical decision not to go after Stan in front of the jury for that.” ); 
Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 74, lines 7-12 (Kent Robison: “And we don’ t know to this day, how many lots 
have been sold, we don’ t know how much money has been generated by the sale of lots, and we don’ t know where 
the money went and what expenses were paid with that money. We just don’t know, as we sit here right now.” ). 
8 Stan confirms in his Motion to Partially Enforce the Settlement Agreement, filed on August 12, 2020, that the 
settlement between him and Todd essentially altered the factual landscape that was considered by the jury and the 
Court.  See Motion to Enforce, p. 3, lines 13-14.  Additionally, the Court confirmed in the Order to Set, that “ [t]he 
decision to withdraw their claims against each other dramatically altered the dispute dynamic, ... [i]nstead of two 
siblings offering evidence against Todd, Wendy was the lone sibling making allegations while Stanley was able to 
transcend the dispute and present in a more neutral manner.”   Order to Set, p. 6, 19-24.  Kent Robison, Todd’s 
personal counsel, also confirmed during the October 14, 2020 hearing, “Stan gave up his claims against Todd in 
exchange for that Settlement Agreement, which clearly changed the landscape of the jury trial. We know that.”  
Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 33, lines 17-22.  
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They want this Court to approve the Settlement Agreement, so they have protection from the 

beneficiaries for breaching their fiduciary duties by negotiating, entering into and carrying out 

its terms.9  Amazingly, in seeking this Court’s approval of the Settlement Agreement, the 

Trustees never make any effort to establish the Settlement Agreement and its terms are in the best 

in interest of the Trusts and all the beneficiaries.  Instead the Trustees attempt to shift the burden 

to the beneficiaries to establish that the Settlement Agreement is: (i) not fair, (ii) not in the best 

interest of the Trusts and beneficiaries and (iii) should not be approved.  The Settlement 

Agreement must not be approved for numerous reasons as follows:  
A. Settlement Agreement is Breach of Trustees’  Fiduciary Duties and Not in Best 

Interest of the Trusts and All the Beneficiaries.  

As an initial matter, Trustees breached and continue to breach their fiduciary duties to 

Wendy and the other beneficiaries of the Trusts by failing to fully disclose the Settlement 

Agreement and its implication and effect.  The Settlement Agreement includes benefits to Todd, 

Individually, Stan, Individually, and their family trusts, making it a self-dealing transaction on 

its face. Because the Settlement Agreement is a self-dealing transaction, the burden is on the 

Trustees to disclose and provide confirmation that this is a fair transaction to the Family Trust, 

the Issue Trust and the beneficiaries of the Trusts.10   

During the October 14, 2020 hearing, Don Lattin, counsel for the Trustees, confirmed 

the Trustees had an obligation to apprise the beneficiaries of the Settlement Agreement, the 

impact and give the beneficiaries an opportunity to voice their concerns about the Settlement 

Agreement, as follows: 
“ from my standpoint representing the trustees and the trusts, all of the 
beneficiaries ... needed to be appraised of the impact of this settlement 
and given the opportunity to voice their concerns, support, or 
comment on the Settlement Agreement once they were given notice 
and the court had a chance to address any concerns of the 

                                                
9 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 23, lines 9-11. (“From the Trustees standpoint, they need the protection of the 
court approving the Settlement Agreement...” ) 
10 See, e.g., Blue Chip Emerald LLC, 299 A.D.2d 278, 279 (N.Y. 2005) ("[W]hen a fiduciary, in furtherance 
of i ts individual interests, deals with the beneficiary of the duty in a matter relating to the fiduciary 
relationship, the fiduciary is strictly obl igated to make 'ful l disclosure' of all  material facts."). See also 
Zastrow v. Journal Communications, Inc., 718 N.W.2d 51, 61 (Wis. 2006) ("[I]f a trustee does not make a 
ful l  disclosure of material facts to a beneficiary, that conduct is a breach of the trustee's duty of loyalty. . . The 
law concludes this breach is intentional."); Flippo v. CSC Associates III, L.L.C., 547 S.E.2d 216, 222 (Va. 2001) 
(Even if a fiduciary's actions are legal, he is in breach when his legal actions are for his own benefit and not for 
the beneficiary) 
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settlement.”11 

Now, almost two years later, Trustees never did this or even made an effort to do this is because 

the Settlement Agreement is not in the best interest of the Trusts and the beneficiaries, but instead 

is a self-serving effort for the Todd and Stan to protect themselves and further their personal 

interests.   

 At a minimum, the Trustees have the burden to establish that each and every term of the 

Settlement Agreement is fair and in the best interest of the Trusts and the beneficiaries.  The 

Trustees must also carry the burden of establishing it was in the best interest of the Trusts and 

the beneficiaries that the Trustees turn their heads away and ignore the prior and ongoing 

breaches of fiduciary duties related to the administration of the Trusts in exchange for the 

substantial personal consideration the Trustees and their family trusts received, including the full 

releases for their bad acts.  This is the ultimate fox guarding the hen-house scenario.  This should 

be an impossible burden to carry considering both Todd and Stan expected the other would not 

live up to their obligations under the Settlement Agreement,12 and it has and will likely be the 

subject of ongoing litigation in the future, regardless of whether it is approved by the Court.13 

There is no telling (and certainly the Trustees have never disclosed) how much money the Trusts 

have spent to date negotiating the Settlement Agreement, negotiating and attempting to mediate 

the Trustees’  disputes over the enforceability of the Settlement Agreement, and now litigating 

the Trustees’  disputes concerning the Settlement Agreement.  Regardless, Trustees used it to gain 

an advantage in the jury trial.  The following aspects of the Settlement Agreement are breaches 

of the Trustees’  fiduciary duties, confirm the Settlement Agreement is not in the best interest of 

the Trusts and beneficiaries and are each grounds for the Court denying approval of the 

Settlement Agreement.  

                                                
11 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 20, line 22 – p. 21, line 6). 
12 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 20, lines 4-7 (Adam Hossmer-Henner: “ if there’s a rationale to try to evade 
some of those settlement provisions on the part of Todd. I think we will see an attempt by Todd to evade part of 
those settlement provisions.” ); Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 37, line 24 – p. 38, line 5 (Kent Robison: “And 
I agree that the foreseeability of Stan not paying is the elephant in the room. Did we think he wouldn’ t pay? Yes. 
Did we think he might withhold the money a year after the settlement was reached? Yes. Completely foreseeable. I 
know that blows my impossibility argument, but it’s the facts.” ). 
13 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 38, line 24 – p. 39, line 2 (Kent Robison: “ I am not asking you to validate 
the agreement. I’m telling you that if it’ s validated, there are things to be done.” ) 
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Todd Bought Off Stan - Stan’s Incline TSS Buy In.  Section II(D) of the Settlement 

Agreement allows Stan to buy a 27.595% interest in Incline TSS, LLC, the entity that owns the 

Lake Tahoe Property for $1,630,000.14  Stan’s buy in would have diluted the Issue Trust’s 

interest in Incline TSS from 54% to 44.81%.15  To obtain the 27.595% interest, Stan is only 

required make interest payments at rate of 3% until 2026.16  Additionally, the terms of the 

Settlement Agreement provide that Stan’s interest in Incline TSS shall immediately vest, and that 

upon a sale, the proceeds would immediately be distributed to Stan.17   

In 2015, Stan attempted to buy an interest in in Incline TSS, LLC.  At that time, Stan was 

to pay $1,500,000 for a 17.02% interest in Incline TSS.  Stan’s buy in would have diluted the 

Issue Trust’s interest from 54% to 44.81%.  On October 28, 2014, Kevin Riley sent an email to 

Todd and Stan with numbers on Stan’s purchase of on interest in Incline TSS, as follows: 

 

Exhibit 4 (Trial Exhibit 441).  Kevin Riley confirms in his email that his numbers were based on 

the Tahoe Property appraising for $11.5 million.     

At trial, it was agreed that the approximate value of the Lake Tahoe Property was $18 

million18 with approximately $2.5 million in outstanding debt.19  Therefore, the Lake Tahoe 

Property had increased $6.5 million from the $11.5 million value Kevin Riley originally used to 

calculate Stan’s buy in.  Despite this considerable increase, the Settlement Agreement requires 

essentially the same buy in price of $1.6 million for a significantly increased interest in Incline 

                                                
14 Settlement Agreement, p. 3, ¶ II(D). 
15 Id.   
16 Id.   
17 Id. at ¶ II(D)(i).   
18 During the October 14, 2020 hearing, Kent Robison, Todd’s individual counsel, argued that the Lake Tahoe 
Property is worth $20 million.  Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 39, lines 19-21. 
19 Exhibit 3, Trial Transcript, 02/20/2019, 32:9-25. 
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TSS ($4.3 million (($18,000,000 - $2,500,000) x .27595), versus $1.53 million (($11,500,000 - 

$2,500,000) x .1702) under the prior agreement).  This is a substantial personal benefit Stan and 

his family trusts received as consideration for entering the Settlement Agreement, sitting by 

Todd’s side during trial and looking the other way concerning Todd’s prior and continuing 

breaches of fiduciary duty.  The Trustees have not and cannot establish this is in the best interest 

of Trusts. 

How is it possible that Stan can pay essentially the same amount of consideration to buy 

into Incline TSS for an increased interest when the value of Incline TSS has increased by $6.5 

million?  Why is the Issue Trust’s interest in Incline TSS reduced to the same minority interest 

of 44% based on a payment of the same amount of consideration?  Based on this transaction 

Todd is trading some of the Issue Trust’s value in Incline TSS as consideration for Stan entering 

the Settlement Agreement.  Additionally, as a result of the buy in, the Issue Trust will no longer 

be the majority owner of Incline TSS with the controlling share of the votes.  While the 

Settlement Agreement reserves the Issue Trust’s remaining 44.81% shares the exclusive right to 

determine when the Tahoe Property sells (meaning Todd retains total power to control the sale), 

all other decisions relating to Incline TSS and the Tahoe Property may only be made with the 

unanimous approval of Stan and Todd.20    None of this is in the best interest of the Issue Trust 

and its beneficiaries.   

Regardless, Stan is getting a significant value out of this buy in on very favorable terms.  

Stan’s interest only payment until January 1, 2026 at three percent (3%) interest means he will 

be paying approximately $41,000 a year for his interest worth approximately $4.3 million 

(($18,000,000 - $2,500,000) x .27595).  Because the Settlement Agreement provides that Stan’s 

interest vests immediately and the proceeds of the sale of the Tahoe Property will be distributed 

immediately to the members, Stan does not even have to make any payments to receive the 

benefits of the transaction.  If the Lake Tahoe Property were sold in the near future, Stan would 

receive $2,882,225 in profit ((($18,000,000 - $2,500,000) x .27595) - $1,395,000) for nothing.   

Therefore, Stan decided to settle and obtain substantial personal benefit instead of 

                                                
20 Settlement Agreement, p. 3, ¶II(D)(ii). 
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maintaining and pursuing his claims against Todd as he is obligated to do as a Co-Trustee to 

protect the interests of the beneficiaries.   Similarly, Todd, motivated by self-preservation and 

other personal benefit, agreed to settle the Family Trust’s claims against Stan, even though Todd 

was aware that these claims were ongoing and would continue to be issues for the Family Trust 

in the future.21  At that moment, Todd needed Stan on his side and Stan was willing to be bought 

and look the other way so he could finally obtain his interest in the Lake Tahoe property.  This 

is a per se breach of Todd’s and Stan’s fiduciary duties and cannot and must not be approved by 

this Court.   

Todd acknowledged in his February 1, 2019 deposition, that the Settlement Agreement, 

including the Tahoe Property purchase, substantial AgCredit loan payments and attorney’s fees, 

adversely affected Wendy’s interests, as follows: 

22 

Amazingly, the Trustees refused to give Wendy and her counsel the Settlement Agreement until 

after Todd’s deposition, so they did not have a copy and were not able to review the terms prior 

to taking Todd’s deposition or question Todd concerning the actual terms during the deposition.  

Payment of Todd’s and Stan’s Individual Attorney’s Fees.  The Settlement Agreement 

                                                
21 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 40, lines 16-23 (Kent Robison: “Your Honor, the benefit conferred by the 
Settlement Agreement was that MR. Hosmer-Henner sat on my right as opposed to my left, which was valuable, 
there no question about that. And Stan’s participation in the trial was Switzerland. I’m a supporter of Wendy and I 
love my family. I’m very sorry all this dispute is happening. And strategical decisions were made not to bring up 
Montreux in that trial. Yes, they were.” ); Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 73, lines 16-24 (Kent Robison: “And 
there’s no question that the trustees were very concerned about not getting financial information about Montreux 
Development (sic) 2018, 2019, and certainly through the trial and ever since. So if I said something to suggest that 
we didn’ t know were weren’t getting money or financials from Montreux, I apologize. That’s conceded. We 
absolutely did know. And, yes, there was a strategical decision not to go after Stan in front of the jury for that.” ); 
Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 74, lines 7-12 (Kent Robison: “And we don’ t know to this day, how many lots 
have been sold, we don’ t know how much money has been generated by the sale of lots, and we don’ t know where 
the money went and what expenses were paid with that money. We just don’t know, as we sit here right now.” ). 
22 Exhibit 5, Todd Jaksick Depo, 02/01/2019, p. 1218, lines 7-15. 
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provides that the Family Trust will cover the legal fees incurred by the Trustees in the lawsuit.23  

The Settlement Agreement also provides for the payment of Todd’s and Stan’s attorney’s fees 

“paid or incurred by Todd or Stan in their individual or beneficiary capacities in Cases Nos. 

PR17-00445 and PR17-00446 or with respect to any attorney’s fees associated with their 

Indemnification Agreements...” .24  This specifically includes the Family Trust reimbursing Todd, 

Individually, in the amount of $400,000 and Stan, Individually, in the amount of $250,000, with 

the ability to obtain another $150,000 if there is an appeal.25  As a result, the Trustees have agreed 

that the Family Trust will pay their all their attorney’s fees, including those owed in their 

individual capacities, as partial consideration for the Trustees resolving claims against each other 

in their fiduciary capacities.  This benefits Todd and Stan personally, not the Trusts or their 

beneficiaries.  The other beneficiaries of the Trusts are paying the individual attorney’s fees that 

Todd and Stan incurred litigating, negotiating and maneuvering against each other to maximize 

each of the own personal benefits, not to protect and obtain best possible results for the Trust 

and beneficiaries.  Todd admitted in his deposition this adversely affects Wendy’s interest.26  

This is blatant self-dealing, a breach of Todd’s and Stan’s fiduciary duties and cannot and must 

not be approved by this Court.   

Indemnification Agreement.  The Settlement Agreement provides that Todd’s purported 

Indemnification Agreement will not be terminated but will be limited to the payment of Ag Credit 

loan #101, including all reimbursement, all note forgiveness, and all loan payments until paid in 

full.27  Todd’s purported Indemnification Agreement is a product of Todd’s fraud, and Stan’s 

pleadings and position prior to being bought off by the Settlement Agreement confirmed it.  Even 

if the document is valid, Todd’s self-serving interpretation and attempted application of the 

Indemnification Agreement to pay his personal debts from the funds of the Family Trust is 

ridiculous and not consistent with its own terms.  If the Indemnification Agreement is valid, it is 

clear from its terms that it was created to prevent Todd from being wiped out if Samuel Jaksick’s 

                                                
23 Settlement Agreement, p. 2, ¶ II(A).   
24 Settlement Agreement, p. 4, ¶ II(G). 
25 Id. 
26 Exhibit 5, Todd Jaksick Depo, 02/01/2019, p. 1218, lines 7-15. 
27 Settlement Agreement, p. 4, ¶ II(F). 
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creditors sought to hold Todd or his entities liable for Samuel Jaksick’s debt.  Instead, Todd has 

used and continues to use the Indemnification Agreement to pay Todd’s debt on property Todd 

owns as it becomes due.   

The Family Trust’s prior payment of Todd’s personal debts were breaches of trust, and 

this provision in the Settlement Agreement requiring the continued payment of Todd’s debts on 

property Todd, his entities or his family trusts owns is continued self-dealing which benefits 

Todd at the expense of the Family Trust and its beneficiaries.  Instead of advocating for and 

seeking a reasonable application of the purported Indemnification Agreement that protects and 

is in the best interest of the Trusts and the beneficiaries of the Trusts, Stan agreed to look the 

other way after he was personally bought off in the Settlement Agreement.   

Todd argues the jury decided the purported Indemnification Agreement was valid.  

Although that is an issue to be heard on appeal, the jury and this Court never heard and ruled on 

the construction of the purported Indemnification Agreement or the proposed application of the 

purported Indemnification Agreement.  Therefore, while the purported Indemnification 

Agreement may ultimately be confirmed to be valid, the Trustees’  application of the 

Indemnification Agreement to the payment of current and future obligations of Todd has not been 

resolved, is disputed and is subject to ongoing breach of fiduciary duty claims.  This is extremely 

significant because the Trustees’  application and payment of Todd’s debts under the purported 

Indemnification Agreement has the potential to completely consume the remaining assets of the 

Family Trust, leaving nothing for Wendy and the other beneficiaries.28 Yet, Trustees ask for 

approval of it through the Settlement Agreement. 

The Trustees have not made any attempt to establish that the Settlement Agreement’ s 

treatment of the purported Indemnification Agreement is in the best interest of the Trusts or the 

beneficiaries. Sure, agreeing the Family Trust, which was set up to take care of Sam Jaksick’s 

three children, will not be liable to Todd’s mortgage on his $3 million personal residence is 

beneficial, but what about all of Todd’s other personal debts?     

                                                
28 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 54, lines 18-24 (Adam Hossmer-Henner: “...Todd’s indemnification claims 
against the trust still number in the millions, that the assets of the Family Trust would eventually be reduced to being 
able to pay Todd’s debts and claims against the Family Trust with zero dollars provided to Wendy and zero dollars 
provided to Stan and zero dollars provided to Todd, zero dollars provided to grandchildren.”). 
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Payment of Jackrabbit Capital Calls.  The Settlement Agreement provides that the Family 

Trust will pay or reimburse Todd, Stan, and Wendy from the Family Trust for prior and future 

capital calls for Jackrabbit Properties, LLC through the 1/1/2021 RaboBank payment.29  This is 

a self-dealing and a breach of trust because the payments of Todd’s and Stan’s capital calls for 

Jackrabbit Properties far exceed the payments of the capital calls for Wendy’s interest.  

The current ownership of Jackrabbit is apparently as follows: 

 

Exhibit 6 (Trial Exhibit 38), p. 6.  In December 2017, Jackrabbit Properties made another capital 

call of its members.  Todd demanded the portion of the capital call for the TBJ Investment Trust 

and Todd Jaksick LLC (totaling $50,508.00) be paid by the Family Trust pursuant to his 

purported Indemnification Agreement.30  Stan knew this was not fair and breach of fiduciary 

duties and pushed back against Todd’s demand, taking the position that everyone needed to pay 

their own interest stating “I have filed an objection with the court regarding this matter so until 

it is heard or Todd changes his Indemnification Agreement substantially (he knows where I’m 

coming from) the trust is not going to make his payments...” .31    Apparently, this payment was 

eventually made, without Stan complaining. 

Regardless, if the Family Trust pays or reimburses Todd, Stan and Wendy32 from the 
                                                
29 Settlement Agreement, p. 4, ¶ II(F)(iii). 
30 Exhibit 6 (Trial Exhibit 38), p. 5. 
31 Exhibit 6 (Trial Exhibit 38), p. 1. 
32 The Settlement Agreement provides the “Family Trust will pay or reimburse Todd, Stan and Wendy Jaksick from 
the Family Trust for prior or future capital calls for Jackrabbit Properties, LLC...” .  Todd, Stan and Wendy do not 
own any interests in Jackrabbit Properties in their individual capacities.  Therefore, the language in the Settlement 
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Family Trust for prior and future capital calls for Jackrabbit Properties through January 1, 2021, 

then Todd and his entities/trusts will receive the benefit of 67.75% of the distributions, Stan and 

his entity will receive the benefit of 20.141% of the distributions and Wendy’s Subtrust wil l 

receive the benefit of 12.102% of the distributions.  This provision in the Settlement Agreement 

that benefits Todd and Stan substantially far more than it benefits Wendy is blatant self-dealing, 

and egregious breach of fiduciary duty and they are asking the Court to approve it.   

Mutual Releases. The Settlement Agreement includes the following releases for Todd and 

Stan: 

   

Settlement Agreement, p. 5, ¶ V.  By entering into this Settlement Agreement, both Todd and 

Stan receive substantial personal benefits as consideration.  In exchange for this consideration, 

Todd, in his capacity as Trustee of the Issue Trust and Co-Trustee of the Family Trust, and 

Stan, in his capacity as Co-Trustee of the Family Trust, have released Todd and Stan, in their 

individual capacities, and several of their entities and their family trusts from any and all claims 

the Family Trust and Issue Trust ever had, have or could have through the execution of the 

Settlement Agreement.  In other words, Wendy’s fiduciaries, on behalf of the Family Trust and 

Issue Trust, are releasing all claims against themselves, their entities and their family trusts.  

There is absolutely no reason for the Family Trust and Issue Trust to release all these claims 

or potential claims against Todd and Stan, especially claims against Todd’s and Stan’s entities 

and family trusts that are being released.  There has been no disclosure to Wendy or the other 

beneficiaries concerning the claims or potential claims of the Family Trust and Issue Trust 

                                                
Agreement contemplates the Family Trust paying the interests that benefit Todd, Stan and Wendy, their entities 
and/or their trusts. Additionally, the Settlement Agreement defines “Todd”  to include Todd as Trustee of the TBJ 
Investment Trust, which owns 38.09% of Jackrabbit Properties.  Settlement Agreement, p. 1.   
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against Todd, Stan, their entities or their family trusts.  As a result, there is no way for Wendy 

and the other beneficiaries to understand implications and effects of such releases and to 

confirm same are in the best interest of the Family Trust and Issue Trust.  This is just another 

self-dealing transaction sought to benefit Todd and Stan over the interests of the Family Trust 

and Issue Trust. 
B. Alternatively, Contingent Contract – Neither Contingency Met.  

In the alternative, if the Court does not find the Settlement Agreement unenforceable ab 

initio, it is unenforceable by its terms. It is undisputed the Settlement Agreement is contingent 

up one of two conditions occurring:   
This Agreement is effective upon execution, but contingent and 
conditioned upon resolution of Case Nos. PR17-00445 and PR17-
00446 through a settlement with Wendy Jack that does not materially 
alter terms of this Agreement, which settlement is not to be 
separately made with Wendy Jaksick by either Todd or Stan, or a 
litigated resolution at trial in the Lawsuit, not including appeals, that 
does not alter the material terms of this Agreement. The Parties agree 
not to take any action to thwart the terms of this Agreement during 
the contingency period. (Emphasis added).33 

There are two contingencies in the Settlement Agreement, one of which must be met, or the 

Settlement Agreement is unenforceable. The first (summarized) is resolving the Lawsuit via settlement with Wendy; it is undisputed that no settlement with Wendy has occurred. The second 

(summarized) requires a resolution by trial that “does not alter the material terms of this 

Agreement,” without regard to any appellate result – meaning, the determination about this 

condition may be made now, just barely over two months shy of the second anniversary of the 

Settlement Agreement.  

The Settlement Agreement provides, specifically, “[t]he Parties specifically agree that the 

attorney’s fees provision of this Agreement, Section II(G), is not a material term of this Agreement 

and variance in this attorney’s fees will not affect the validity of this Agreement. Simply put, paying 

each other’s Individual attorneys’ fees and expenses is not a material term. Because the latter was 

singled out and excluded as material, all the other terms must be material  because the Parties to the 

Purported Settlement Agreement could have listed any other term as non-material, when they listed 

                                                
33 Settlement Agreement, p. 4, Section III. 
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the attorneys’ fees one as being non-material. 

In their Petition for Instructions, Trustees admit the result of the jury and equitable trials 

materially altered the terms of their settlement by the statement, “[ t]he Trustees did not contemplate 

the financial obligations which resulted from the trial of the issues in Case No. PR17-00445 and 

PR17-00446, including payment of $300,000.00 for Wendy’s attorney’s fees.” As a conditional 

contract, if a condition that is required to make it enforceable is not met, the contract does not exist 

and is not enforceable. Neither contingency required to make the Settlement Agreement valid and 

enforceable, one of which had to have happened, occurred, which means – by its terms – the 

enforceability of the Settlement Agreement was never triggered and, therefore, it is not enforceable. 
C. Alternatively, Failure to Seek Approval for Certain Provisions.  

In the alternative, if the Court does not find the Settlement Agreement unenforceable ab 

initio, it is unenforceable by its terms. The Settlement Agreement contemplates the following, “To 

the extent necessary, the Parties will seek (sic) mutually cooperate to obtain court approval of this 

Agreement.” 34  Not only did the Parties fail to seek court approval until instructed to do so by the 

Court causing them to file the Petition for Instructions, the opposite happened, the Parties to the 

Settlement Agreement sued each other. Stan and Todd, apparently, now move together to ask the 

Court to approve the Settlement Agreement asking the Court to determine whether it is 

enforceable in general.35  But, even the request for approval is conditional because Stan and Todd 

never thought to determine if it was possible to fund their supposed settlement. They ask the 

Court, to approve the Agreement conditioned upon a funding mechanism to fulfill all 

obligations incurred under the Agreement and as a result of the litigation.” 36  
D. Alternatively, Failure of Performance is Failure of Consideration.  

In the alternative, if the Court does not find the Settlement Agreement unenforceable ab 

initio, it is unenforceable by its terms. Stan and Todd have not provided a single shred of evidence 

that either has done anything to make the terms of the Settlement Agreement happen. Neither 

produced records showing Stan signed a Note in favor of Incline TSS or that an Option Agreement 

was completed and option funds paid or that Todd signed a Note in favor of Stan to purchase his 

                                                
34 Settlement Agreement, P. 4, Section III. 
35 See Petition for Instructions, p. 1. 
36 See Petition for Instructions, p. 3, Section I and Section II. 
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interest in Buckhorn. The Issue Trust Accounting for 2019 shows ownership of the Issue Trust in 

Incline TSS at 54% on January 1, 2019, and it remains at 54% on December 31, 2019, so no transfer 

was made notwithstanding it was to happen immediately. 

There is not a single shred of proof that any consideration contemplated by the Settlement 

Agreement has been exchanged or that performance by either side has occurred, which was and 

remains the crux of their lawsuits against each other. It is readily apparent the Settlement Agreement 

was a sham solely to gain an advantage before the jury and Your Honor. Turns out, it did nothing, 

but prejudice Wendy.  

The Settlement Agreement should be set aside as unenforceable because it was used as a 

total surprise on the eve of trial and was used a sword to gain an advantage without any 

corresponding ability of Wendy to raise new issues either by pleading or through discovery that 

would have allowed her to address the switch in position of Stan, as Family Co-Trustee. In short, 

all the Trustees gained an unfair advantage in the jury trial and equitable trial by the Settlement 

Agreement, which was in furtherance of their breach of fiduciary duties and evidences their 

collusion and conspiracy to commit such breaches.   

E. Future of L itigation and No Protection for the Beneficiaries.  

It is clear from the pleadings and arguments of Todd’s and Stan’s counsel since Stan filed 

the Motion to Partially Enforce the Settlement Agreement, there never was anywhere near $4 

million in value that Wendy would receive in the near future as Todd, Wendy’s fiduciary, 

represented to the Jury during trial. They cannot even fund their own settlement.  That, like the 

Settlement Agreement, was nothing but a ploy to manipulate the Jury, this Honorable Court and 

Wendy to obtain a favorable outcome for the Trustees.   It has been nearly two years and Todd 

and Stan have done nothing the carry out the terms of the sham Settlement Agreement.   

The value of the Family Trust is its interests in entities that Stan controls and entities that 

Todd controls.37  Todd and Stan have fought about disclosure and funding of the Family Trust 

                                                
37 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 50, lines 5-7; Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript p. 74, lines 13-23 (Kent 
Robison: “Now, when that Settlement Agreement was executed, here’s the status of the Family Trust. It had two 
primary ownerships in closely held corporations, Toiyable and Buckhorn. And the rest of the holdings, your Honor, 
in the closely held corporations are not de minimis but they total $300,000. So the big ticket items of the trust, in 
terms of its assets, is Toiyabe, valued by evidently Kevin Riley at that time at $2.7 million.” ). 
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from the entities each of them control prior to and during the litigation leading up to trial and 

continue to fight about these same issues after the Settlement Agreement was entered.38  The 

fights were not resolved by the Settlement Agreement and will continue.  Todd and Stan revealed 

their true selves in the litigation concerning the enforcement of the Settlement Agreement.  This 

fight, including the pleadings and the arguments of Todd’s and Stan’s counsel, reveal the 

Settlement Agreement was the result of self-interest and self-preservation, not a genuine effort 

by the Trustees to resolve legitimate issues facing the Trusts and the administration of the Trusts. 

Todd’s purported Indemnification Agreement will likely consume the remainder of the 

Family Trust assets if Todd and Stan are left in charge.39  Todd and Stan know this and will 

continue their efforts to avoid funding the Family Trust from the entities they each control.  As 

admitted by Todd’s and Stan’s counsel, an approval of the Settlement Agreement will just be the 

start of litigation concerning (i) the interpretation of the Settlement Agreement, as each brother 

attempts to enforce the beneficial provisions and avoid obligations, and (ii) fights over disclosure 

of information and the timing and amount of the funding of the Family Trusts imposed on each 

of Todd’s and Stan’s entities.  Todd’s own attorney said the Settlement Agreement stands or falls 

based on funding, and both sides admit funding is impossible. You Honor’s observation that 

Todd’s and Stan’s “ fiduciary responsibilities are entangled with personal interests”  and the 

“tone”  of the recent filings concerning the Settlement Agreement project “ litigation years into 

the future”  is exactly what should be expected.40  If the status quo continues, Todd’s and Stan’s 

efforts to maximize their personal benefits will continue, and the Trusts will continue to be 

harmed and all the other beneficiaries left unprotected.  The Court’s harsh words to the Trustees 

about its inclination to remove Todd and Stan will result in a short term change of Todd’s and 

                                                
38 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 62, lines 3-10 (Adam Hossmer-Henner: “ ...Todd has consistently tried to get 
Toiyabe to fund the Family Trust, which is why that is the focus of the entire argument at every state. The point is 
that because Todd believes that Toiyabe should be contributing more to the Family Trust and that that’s one of 
Stan’s entities, and that Toiyabe should be funding the debts of the Family Trust Todd claims owes him, that’s the 
central point of disputes between those two brothers. It was attempted to be resolved on multiple occasions and it 
wasn’ t in the Settlement Agreement...” ). 
39 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 54, lines 18-24 (Adam Hossmer-Henner: “ ...Todd’s indemnification claims 
against the trust still number in the millions, that the assets of the Family Trust would eventually be reduced to being 
able to pay Todd’s debts and claims against the Family Trust with zero dollars provided to Wendy and zero dollars 
provided to Stan and zero dollars provided to Todd, zero dollars provided to grandchildren.”). 
40 Exhibit 1, 10/14/2020 Transcript, p. 44, lines 20-24. 
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Stan’s behavior for purposes of appearance to the Court, but will not change or resolve any of 

the underlying issues and or stop the ongoing damage to the Trusts and beneficiaries. The 

Settlement Agreement is unenforceable. 

I I I . CONCLUSION 

For the reasons set forth above, Wendy respectfully requests the court refuse to approve 

the Settlement Agreement and deny all other relief sought in the Petition for Instructions.  

AFFIRMATION STATEMENT 

Pursuant to NRS 239B.030 
 The undersigned does hereby affirm that this WENDY A. JAKSICK’S OPPOSITION TO 
PETITION FOR INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT filed by Wendy A. 
Jaksick in the above-captioned matter does not contain the social security number of any person.   

DATED this 16th day of November, 2020. 
 
FOX ROTHSCHILD LLP 
/s/ Mark J. Connot     
Mark J. Connot (10010) 
1980 Festival Plaza Drive, #700 
Las Vegas, NV 89135 
mconnot@foxrothschild.com 
 
SPENCER &  JOHNSON, PLLC 
/s/ R. Kevin Spencer     
R. Kevin Spencer (Admitted PHV) 
Zachary E. Johnson (Admitted PHV) 
500 N. Akard Street, Suite 2150 
Dallas, Texas 75201 
kevin@dallasproabte.com 
zach@dallasprobate.com 
Attorneys for Respondent Wendy A. Jaksick 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 Pursuant to NRCP 5(b), I certify that I am an employee of FOX ROTHSCHILD LLP and that on 
this 16th day of November, 2020, I served a true and correct copy of WENDY A. JAKSICK’S 
OPPOSITION TO PETITION FOR INSTRUCTIONS REGARDING SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
by the Court’s electronic file and serve system addressed to the following: 
 

Kent Robison, Esq. 
Therese M. Shanks, Esq. 
Robison, Sharp, Sullivan & Brust 
71 Washington Street 
Reno, NV  89503 
Attorneys for Todd B. Jaksick, Beneficiary 
SSJ’s Issue Trust and Samuel S. Jaksick, Jr., 
Family Trust 
 

Donald A. Lattin, Esq. 
L. Robert LeGoy, Jr., Esq. 
Brian C. McQuaid, Esq. 
Carolyn K. Renner, Esq. 
Maupin, Cox & LeGoy 
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-o0o- 

WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA

WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 14TH, 2020, 8:30 A.M.

-o0o-

THE COURT:  Good morning, everyone.  

Let me call the case.  It's PR17-00445, to 

summarize, counsel.  We all know the case.  It's the SSJ 

and its related parties and entities.  

I see Mr. Robison.  I see Mr. Hosmer-Henner.  I 

believe I see Mr. Todd Jaksick.  And do I have anybody 

else who wishes to make an appearance?  

MR. LATTIN:  Yes, your Honor.  Don Lattin 

representing the trustees of the Family Trust and Todd 

Jaksick in his capacity as the SSJ Issue Trust Trustee. 

THE COURT:  Thank you.  And I see a banner of Stan 

Jaksick's name.  I do not see him visually, which is 

fine.

Ms. Clerk, that appears to be everyone that I 

have.

Mr. Lattin, I did not see a prehearing statement 

from you. 

MR. LATTIN:  Yes, your Honor, that is correct.  
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litigation if the parties have differing interpretations 

of those settlement provisions -- have intentionally 

different interpretations of those settlement provisions 

and, more importantly, if there's a rationale to try to 

evade some of those settlement provisions on the part of 

Todd.  I think we will see an attempt by Todd to evade 

part of those settlement provisions. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Lattin or Mr. Robison, whoever 

wishes to go first. 

MR. LATTIN:  I can, if you would like, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  Thank you. 

MR. LATTIN:  We, too, as the trustees, that 

includes all the trustees, Mr. Kimbell as well as Todd 

and Stan, negotiated this settlement in good faith.  We 

negotiated it on the eve of the trial, and it took 

Mr. Hosmer and I hours to negotiate it.  It was always 

anticipated because the court had taken jurisdiction of 

both the SSJ Issue Trust and the Family Trust that it 

would -- the Settlement Agreement would be presented to 

the court as any other -- as in any other probate matter 

when there is a settlement to be approved by the court.  

The reason for that was because, from my 

standpoint representing the trustees and the trust, all 

of the beneficiaries both of the Family Trust, and there 
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are others aside from Wendy, and all of the beneficiaries 

of the Issue Trust, needed to be apprised of the impact 

of this settlement and given the opportunity to voice 

their concerns, support, or comment on the Settlement 

Agreement once they were given notice and the court had a 

chance to address any concerns of the settlement.  So it 

was always anticipated that it would come before this 

court for approval.

It was because of that, it was always referenced 

in the settlement agreement that it would come before the 

court.  So on behalf of the trustees we believe this 

agreement is only enforceable once the court approves it, 

and I know that you commented in your previous order that 

that was a ministerial act.  While I agree that it is a 

ministerial act, it's an important one because of the 

implications to each of the beneficiaries.  And a lot of 

the beneficiaries, while they were minors before this 

Settlement Agreement was entered into, they are now over 

the age of 18 and would be entitled to come in and object 

to this. 

THE COURT:  Mr. Lattin, I want to focus on this a 

little bit -- because this is not a usual case.  It is 

unusual. 

MR. LATTIN:  I think we all know that, your Honor. 
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and perhaps the court would have said, the jury approved 

this and so therefore, as the judge in this matter, I'm 

going to agree with what the jury said.  

All I'm talking about is a venue for all of the 

beneficiaries who are not involved in the trial to have 

their participation, so that's my point on that. 

THE COURT:  Okay.  I understand that point.  I 

understand that. 

MR. LATTIN:  From a trustee's standpoint, they 

need the protection of the court approving the Settlement 

Agreement as well just for formality reasons.

Now, with regard to the actual Settlement 

Agreement, it was anticipated when that was entered into 

that there would be funding available from the Family 

Trust and the Issue Trust assets to pay all the 

particular obligations that are set forth in the 

Settlement Agreement. 

THE COURT:  Where does the agreement reflect in 

writing that anticipation?  

MR. LATTIN:  Well, one example is on page 4 of 8 

of the Settlement Agreement. 

THE COURT:  What exhibit is that in these 

electronic -- 

MR. LATTIN:  You know, I'm looking at paper 
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to allow the jury to know about it or for it to be in 

evidence at all.  And I believe that Stan and Todd took 

that position.

The settlement was admitted in part during the 

testimony.  I think the court's ruling was it was 

relevant to the credibility of Todd and/or Stan because 

of the bias it might create to testify against 

Wednesday -- Wendy -- excuse me -- and so bit by bit the 

witnesses were examined about specific portions, and you 

allowed Mr. Todd Jaksick to read section 3.  And counsel 

and I agreed that if it's going to be referred to, maybe 

the jury should see the whole thing, and we stipulated it 

into evidence.  And the jury had the Settlement Agreement 

when it deliberated.

The question is, did that benefit Todd as having 

made peace with his brother and did it benefit Stan as 

having made peace with his brother, but Stan gave up his 

claims against Todd in exchange for that Settlement 

Agreement, which clearly changed the landscape of the 

jury trial.  We know that.  

The Settlement Agreement is a good one.  The 

Settlement Agreement is fair.  The Settlement Agreement 

helps Luke.  The Settlement Agreement benefits Wendy.  

The Settlement Agreement benefits Stan and it benefits 
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THE COURT:  I understand your argument that one 

implies the other, but I have specifically enumerated 

conditions that compose a contingency category, and it's 

just silent about that. 

MR. ROBISON:  It is silent.  I'm not going to blue 

pan the Settlement Agreement before you.  But I think if 

you -- if anyone ever got in downstream to whether or not 

there was a covenant of good faith and fair dealing to 

have Stan account for and distribute funds to the Family 

Trust, I don't know whether that will ever be created as 

an argument or not.  

I see most of those individual provisions as 

executor.  If you validate this agreement for the reasons 

you've stated in your order to set, both parties are 

required to do things in the future to make it an 

executive -- a completed contract.  So your ruling today 

sets the stage for what happens in the future.  

I'm a little bit optimistic that if you validate 

this agreement, it might work.  There might be Toiyabe 

money to fund the debt.  There might be a liquidation of 

assets to substantiate the debt articulated in the 

Settlement Agreement.  But that is -- those are future 

events after the Settlement Agreement is validated.  

And I agree that the foreseeability of Stan not 
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paying is the elephant in the room.  Did we think he 

wouldn't pay?  Yes.  Did we think he might withhold the 

money a year after the settlement was reached?  Yes.  

Completely foreseeable.  I know that blows my impossibly 

argument, but it's the facts. 

THE COURT:  So, Mr. Robison, it sounds like you're 

arguing that I should validate this agreement?  

MR. ROBISON:  Well, your Honor, I think -- you 

asked both counsel what that order would look like -- 

THE COURT:  I was going to ask you the same thing. 

MR. ROBISON:  Upon motion made and good cause 

appearing, the court sets a hearing for approval of the 

settlement agreement and notifies all parties.  The 

trustees are entitled to that order approving the 

settlement, and the arguments to be made about the 

validity of that agreement has to be aired out before the 

Supreme Court hears it.  

We are scheduled for a December 16 mediation 

settlement with the Supreme Court mediator.  We know that 

Wendy is bringing this to the table.  We know that we 

have to address it.  I'm not asking you to defer ruling 

but I'm enlightening you to what we see coming down in 

the future.  

That said, your Honor, I'm not asking you to 
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validate the agreement.  I'm telling you that if it's 

validated, there are things to be done.  And we both 

know, your Honor, one of those things to be done is to 

see if we can leverage some money out of Toiyabe to fund 

the provisions of the Settlement Agreement, that's 

something that we have to address, if it's validated.  

THE COURT:  Would you all pause for just a moment 

and one of you quickly tell me the page and paragraph of 

the language about approval?  I cited it in my order, 

I've read this agreement many times, but I just need to 

be able to find it because the language is less artful in 

the agreement than the arguments being made because it 

seems to have a qualifier. 

MR. ROBISON:  To the extent necessary, the parties 

will seek court approval. 

THE COURT:  Right, to the extent necessary. 

MR. ROBISON:  Right.  Now I'm going to defer on 

this one because I wasn't in the drafting exercise nor 

the negotiations.  But if you -- if you dilute the Issue 

Trust interest in the $20 million asset called the Lake 

Tahoe house, I'm not quite sure how Todd, as the trustee, 

as he testified in trial, can do that without your 

approval. 

THE COURT:  I want to push you a little bit in the 
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same way I pushed Mr. Lattin. 

MR. ROBISON:  I'm going to defer now. 

THE COURT:  I'm not done with you yet.

Sometimes we should be careful about what we 

request because we might actually receive it.  

I've indicated my concern about how that agreement 

changed the jury trial.  You've acknowledged as much.  

Everybody in good faith would acknowledge that the trial 

changed because of the party positions.  And if I choose 

not to validate this Settlement Agreement, must I then 

consider a new trial just as a matter of manifest 

justice?  

MR. ROBISON:  Your Honor, the Supreme Court is 

going to be inundated with new trial requests, whether 

this Settlement Agreement is validated or not by Wendy's 

counsel.  Your Honor, the benefit conferred by the 

Settlement Agreement was that Mr. Hosmer-Henner sat on my 

right as opposed to my left, which was valuable, there's 

no question about that.  And Stan's participation in the 

trial was Switzerland.  I'm a supporter of Wendy and I 

love my family.  I'm very sorry all this dispute is 

happening.  And strategical decisions were made not to 

bring up Montreux in that trial.  Yes, they were.  But 

Todd did not get the benefit of Stan not going after 
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THE COURT:  That's fine.  Thank you.

Could we all just pause for a moment?  I'm going 

to cycle through again with Mr. Hosmer-Henner.

I think at this point, I'm going to add a little 

more detail about my reaction to reading this newest 

round of moving papers so that you can comment in your 

next opportunity to argue.

In my most reactive moment, grounded in 

frustration, I thought I would enter an order directing 

Wendy's counsel to file points and authorities examining 

this court's ability under the probate code -- because I 

have continuing jurisdictional oversight of the trust, to 

examine this court's ability under the probate court 

rules of appellate procedure and any other decisional 

authorities, this court's ability to enter an order 

directing the trustees to show cause why they should not 

be removed from their trusteeship.  And if and how this 

court could broaden this order to all entities in which 

Todd and Stan had management or trustee authority, 

because it appears to me that the fiduciary 

responsibilities are entangled with personal interests, 

and that is a very nuclear option.  But given the tone of 

Todd's individual response, projecting litigation years 

into the future against Stan regarding fiduciary duties, 
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THE COURT:  Forgive me.  You've taken me to the 

complexities and I began my question by focusing on the 

core.  Does the Family Trust have an interest in an 

entity that Stan manages or otherwise controls?  

MR. HOSMER-HENNER:  Yes, the Family Trust is an 

entity in multiple entities that Stan manages or 

controls, as well as that Todd manages and controls. 

THE COURT:  This is an allegation, I understand, 

but Stan can make management or control decisions that 

either open the portal of money to the Family Trust or 

closes the portal of money to the Family Trust; is that 

right? 

MR. HOSMER-HENNER:  Not of Toiyabe, because those 

decisions are made down below at the Montreux Development 

Group level. 

THE COURT:  Which is why I included in my late 

night reactive outlined order that I would want points 

and authorities not just to remove the trustees of the 

subject entities but how I could lawfully broaden my 

order to include every single entity in which Todd and 

Stan had management or trustee authority. 

MR. HOSMER-HENNER:  Your Honor, I'll clarify that 

then with respect to Toiyabe.  The Family Trust, to my 

knowledge, doesn't have the ability to appoint the 
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speculations about where the money are something that 

were explored during discovery and could have been 

explored during discovery.  But Montreux Development 

Group is an ongoing entity.  It is publically recorded 

that it is in the process of obtaining a final map.  It 

may have value, but it doesn't have liquid value and it's 

real estate value because the money has been reinvested 

in the company, then it doesn't need to distribute those 

funds to the Family Trust at this point in time.  But it 

still absolutely retains some value and the Family Trust 

still has a 50-percent share in a valuable company that 

controls real estate.  But to say that a holding company 

should be partitioned makes no corporate sense.  And to 

say that there's some entitlement to liquidate two levels 

down these lots to then provide them to the Family Trust, 

which again at this point, may have nothing left given 

the other litigation involved in the case, which means 

that Todd's indemnification claims against the trust 

still number in the millions, that the assets of the 

Family Trust would eventually be reduced to being able to 

pay Todd's debts and claims against the Family Trust with 

zero dollars provided to Wendy and zero dollars provided 

to Stan and zero dollars provided to Todd, zero dollars 

provided to grandchildren.  That's that course we're 
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individual entities.  We're just here to discuss the 

Settlement Agreement.  But the problem, your Honor, is 

that Todd has consistently tried to get Toiyabe to fund 

the Family Trust, which is why that is the focus of their 

entire argument at every stage.  The point is that 

because Todd believes that Toiyabe should be contributing 

more to the Family Trust and that that's one of Stan's 

entities, and that Toiyabe should be funding the debts of 

the Family Trust Todd claims owes him, that's the central 

point of dispute between those two brothers.  It was 

attempted to be resolved on multiple occasions and it 

wasn't in the Settlement Agreement, so to insert it now 

as a hidden term in the Settlement Agreement is 

completely outside the course of the parties' 

negotiations and dealing. 

THE COURT:  Let me not then focus on the hidden 

term but a disclosed term.  Todd and Stan agreed in the 

Settlement Agreement that they would wrap up the affairs 

of the trust as soon as practicable but they also 

identified what could be practicable as an end-of-year 

date.  I think it was December 31st.  

Counsel, I'm close enough so you know what I'm 

referring to, I hope.  

How could this Family Trust ever wrap up its 
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indicated my inclination that the verdict itself and the 

court's equitable order did not affect those.  I'm trying 

to put that in one category while thinking about the 

court's approval of the entire agreement and how I -- how 

I reconcile my continuing inclination that the verdict 

didn't disrupt those specific conditions, while giving 

all beneficiaries a chance to be fully heard on the 

validity of the agreement.

Mr. Robison?  

MR. ROBISON:  Your Honor, I don't know what I 

argued to create the impression that counsel articulates 

that we were not aware that Montreux was not being funded 

before the trial.  I think in my statement I argued and 

stated, of course, we were aware and I even stated in my 

argument that that would be counterproductive to my 

impossibility argument.  I said that.  And there's no 

question that the trustees were very concerned about not 

getting financial information about Montreux Development 

2018, 2019, and certainly through the trial and ever 

since.  So if I said something to suggest that we didn't 

know that we weren't getting money or financials from 

Montreux, I apologize.  That's conceded.  We absolutely 

did know.  And, yes, there was a strategical decision not 

to go after Stan in front of the jury for that.
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But the fact remains this, in 2018, your Honor, 

Kevin Riley gives a value for the Family Trust interest 

in Montreux, $2.7 million according to the 2018 

financials.  In 2019, we get financials that show that, 

according to Kevin Riley, the value of the Family Trust 

interest in Montreux is 2.5 million, so it's going down.  

It's not going up.  And we don't know to this day, how 

many lots have been sold, we don't know how much money 

has been generated by the sale of lots, and we don't know 

where the money went and what expenses were paid with 

that money.  We just don't know, as we sit here right 

now.  

Now, when that Settlement Agreement was executed, 

here's the status of the Family Trust.  It had two 

primary ownerships in closely held corporations, Toiyabe 

and Buckhorn.  And the rest of the holdings, your Honor, 

in the closely held corporations are not de minimis but 

they total $300,000.  So the big ticket items of the 

trust, in terms of its assets, is Toiyabe, valued by 

evidently Kevin Riley at that time at $2.7 million.  And 

it's impossible for anybody to think that that Settlement 

Agreement was not signed with some recognition that money 

was there.  

Despite the April letter -- I believe that's 
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that were submitted in advance of this hearing.  They're 

part of the court record but I'm just not going to 

formally admit them.  I am not excluding in any way the 

exhibits that were attached to the moving papers which, 

counsel, you know I read.  I referenced them in my order.  

I just don't know what they are. 

MR. ROBISON:  Thank you. 

THE COURT:  All right.  Anything else?  

MR. ROBISON:  Nothing. 

MR. LATTIN:  Nothing, your Honor. 

THE COURT:  The court will leave the session.  

Good day to all of you. 

(At 10:50 a.m., court adjourned.) 

* * * * *
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STATE OF NEVADA       ) 
                      )  ss. 
COUNTY OF WASHOE      ) 

 

              I, ERIN T. FERRETTO, an Official Reporter 

of the Second Judicial District Court of the State of 

Nevada, in and for the County of Washoe, DO HEREBY 

CERTIFY: 

              That I was present in Department No. 15 of 

the above-entitled Court on WEDNESDAY, OCTOBER 14TH, 

2020, and took verbatim stenotype notes of the 

proceedings had upon the matter captioned within, and 

thereafter transcribed them into typewriting as herein 

appears; 

              That the foregoing transcript is a full, 

true and correct transcription of my stenotype notes of 

said proceedings.

That I am not related to or employed by any 

parties or attorneys herein, nor financially interested 

in the outcome of these proceedings.

  

DATED:  This 2nd day of November, 2020.

             /s/ Erin T. Ferretto  
                           ___________________________  
                           ERIN T. FERRETTO, CCR #281
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Print Date:  3/4/2019 

 

Jury Trial Exhibits 
 

TITLE: CONS: TRUST: SSJ’S ISSUE TRUST 

 
PET:  Wendy Jaksick          ATTYs:  Kevin Spencer, Esq. + Zachary Johnson, Esq. + Mark Connot, Esq. 

RESP:  Todd Jaksick          ATTYs:  Kent Robison, Esq. + Therese Shanks, Esq. 

RESP:  Stan Jaksick            ATTYs:  Adam Hosmer-Henner, Esq. + Philip Kreitlein, Esq. 

TRUSTEES:  Michael Kimmel + Kevin Riley    ATTY:  Donald Lattin, Esq. 

Case No:  PR17-00445             Dept. No:   15                  Clerk:   A. Dick           Date:  3/1/19 
   

Exhibit No.            Party                          Description                             Marked       Offered     Admitted 

454 

Wendy 

Jaksick 

Email Dated February 14, 

2017 From Todd Jaksick to 

Stan Jaksick, Re: Personal 

Guarantee 

2/4/19 
NO 

OBJECTION 
2/20/19 

455 
Wendy 

Jaksick 

Email Dated July 21, 2017 

From Kevin Riley to Wendy 

Jaksick, Re: bhc Trust 
2/4/19   

456 

Wendy 

Jaksick 

Email Dated December 05, 

2017 From Stan Jaksick to 

Todd Jaksick, Re: Meeting 

notes 11/29/17 

2/4/19   

457 
Wendy 

Jaksick 

Settlement Agreement 

Between Todd Jaksick and 

Stan Jaksick  
2/19/19  --- 

458 Wendy 

Jaksick  

Correspondence dated 

February 24, 2006 from 

Robert LeGoy and Gustave 

Rossi to Sam Jaksick and 

Todd Jaksick, Re: Proposed 

transfer of Home Camp Land 

and Livestock Co., Inc 

2/14/19   

459 Wendy 

Jaksick 
Email dated May 11, 2006 

from Robert LeGoy to 

Jessica Clayton, Re: 

Clayton’s direction to sign 

family trust 

2/14/19   
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Code #4185

SUNSHINE REPORTING SERVICES
151 Country Estates Circle
Reno, Nevada  89511
775-323-3411

IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE

HONORABLE DAVID A. HARDY, DISTRICT JUDGE

-o0o-

WENDY JAKSICK,

            Petitioner,

vs.

TODD B. JAKSICK, Individually, 
as Co-Trustee of the Samuel S. 
Jaksick Jr. Family Trust, and 
as Trustee of the SSJ's Issue 
Trust; et al.,

           Defendants.  

    Case No. PR17-00445 

    Dept. 15

    Case No. PR17-00446

    Dept. 15

  __________________________________/              

TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

JURY TRIAL - 4 

February 20, 2019 

Reno, Nevada

REPORTED BY:  CONSTANCE S. EISENBERG, CCR #142, RMR, CRR

Job No. 529102 
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APPEARANCES:

For Wendy Jaksick:

SPENCER & JOHNSON, PLLC
BY:  R. KEVIN SPENCER, ESQ.
AND:  ZACHARY JOHNSON, ESQ.
500 N. Akard Street, Suite 2150
Dallas, Texas  75201
214-965-9999
241-965-9500
kevin@dallasprobate.com

          zach@dallasprobate.com  

And: 

FOX ROTHSCHILD LLP
BY:  MARK J. CONNOT, ESQ.
One Summerlin
1980 Festival Plaza Dr., Suite 700
Las Vegas, Nevada  89135
702-262-6899
Fax 702-597-5503
mconnot@foxrothschild.com 

 

For Todd Jaksick:

ROBISON, SHARP, SULLIVAN & BRUST
BY: KENT R. ROBISON, ESQ.  
71 Washington Street 
Reno, Nevada  89503
775-329-3151
Fax 775-329-7941
krobison@rssblaw.com 

For Stan J. Jaksick:

McDONALD CARANO WILSON LLP 
BY:  ADAM HOSMER-HENNER, ESQ.  
100 W. Liberty Street, 10th Floor
P. O. Box 2670
Reno, Nevada  89501
775-788-2000
Fax 775-788-2020
ahosmerhenner@mcdonaldcarano.com 
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For Michael Kimmel, Kevin Riley and Todd Jaksick:

MAUPIN, COX & LeGOY
BY: DONALD A. LATTIN, ESQ.
4785 Caughlin Parkway
P. O. Box 30000
Reno, Nevada  89520
775-827-2000
775-827-2185
dlattin@mclrenolaw.com

Also present:

KEITH CARTWRIGHT
Courtroom Concepts
Houston, Texas
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current value.  You may even probe his reference to Zillow and 

what that means.

But in terms of a document admitted into evidence as a 

statement of value, I'm going to disallow it. 

MR. SPENCER:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

BY MR. SPENCER:

Q So we talked about Zillow, what it is, generally, the 

online service, and you are familiar with that.

Do you accept the Zillow valuation that you've 

referenced earlier, 18 to 19 million? 

A Yeah, I think that the only way we would know to be able 

to prove that is actually try to sell the house and see what it 

sells for.  But I think it could very well be in that range of the 

18 million.

There's a few things with the Tahoe house that are a 

little bit different than some of the other Tahoe houses right in 

the area, that are issues that we have on the piece of property, 

versus some of the neighbors. 

Q Okay.  But as owner of the entity that owns the 

Lake Tahoe property, you would generally agree the appraisal range 

would be in the $18 million range? 

A I think it is certainly possible.  And I think if we 

were going to try to sell it, we would try more than that.  It 

just depends on what buyer we were able to find that would 

actually come to acquire the house.  
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THE COURT:  All right.  Bring the jury in.

(The jury entered the courtroom.)  

THE COURT:  As you arrive in your seats, you may please 

be seated.

And Counsel may continue. 

MR. SPENCER:  Thank you, Your Honor. 

BY MR. SPENCER:

Q Todd, before the break, we were looking at the 

accountings.  And we got to December 31st of 2017, and your 

personal mortgage was still on that accounting.  

And I believe now, you said that that personal mortgage 

is no longer a claim that you are making against the family trust.  

Is that right? 

A That is correct. 

Q Okay.  And why is that? 

A It's been a contested item between my brother and I over 

the years, and we came to an agreement.  And I told him that I 

would remove it off the Exhibit A of the indemnification 

agreement. 

Q Uh-huh.  And have you ever told Wendy that? 

A Not yet. 

Q All right.  And the agreement to -- that you've reached 

with Stan -- and you two are cotrustees of the family trust still, 

right? 

A Yes. 
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decision made, I think, at one week after this, October 14th, 

October 21st, that all those creditor claims that I was talking 

about -- that I was trying to find the stack of them, we were 

talking about an hour or so ago -- it was agreed by Brian McQuaid 

and the trustees that all those creditor claims would be filed, as 

well as there was creditor claims filed on behalf of other lenders 

as well. 

THE COURT:  Thank you.  

Ladies and gentlemen, during this evening recess, you 

are admonished not to converse among yourselves or with anyone 

else on any subject connected with this trial.  

You will not read, watch or listen to any report of or 

commentary on the trial by any person connected with this case or 

by any medium of information, including, without limitation, the 

newspaper, television, Internet or radio.

Please be mindful of the Court's continuing 

admonishment.  No social media investigations or research.

You are further admonished not to form or express any 

opinion on any subject connected with this trial until the case is 

submitted to you for deliberations.

Good night, ladies and gentlemen.  We'll see you, for 

entry into the courtroom, at 9:45 tomorrow morning.

Stand for our jury.  

(The proceedings concluded at 4:16 p.m.)

-o0o-
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STATE OF NEVADA    )
                   )  ss.
WASHOE COUNTY      )

I, CONSTANCE S. EISENBERG, an Official Reporter of the 

Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, in and for 

the County of Washoe, DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

That I was present in Department 15 of the 

above-entitled Court on February 20, 2019, and took verbatim 

stenotype notes of the proceedings had upon the matter captioned 

within, and thereafter transcribed them into typewriting as herein 

appears; 

That I am not a relative nor an employee of any of the 

parties, nor am I financially or otherwise interested in this 

action;

That the foregoing transcript, consisting of pages 1 

through 192, is a full, true and correct transcription of my 

stenotype notes of said proceedings.

DATED:  At Reno, Nevada, this 11th day of May, 2019.

    /s/Constance S. Eisenberg
                        ____________________________  

    CONSTANCE S. EISENBERG
       CCR #142, RMR, CRR
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ri Grnai Jessica Clayton jtclaytonegmail.com

Fwd Tahoe/Incline TSS

message

Jessica Clayton jtclaytonegmail.com Tue May 12018 at 1212 PM

To Jessica Clayton jtclaytonegmail.com

From Kevin Riley kevinrmb-cpa.com

Date Tue Oct 28 2014 at 252 PM

Subject Tahoe/Incline TSS

To Todd Jaksick tjaksickgmail.com ssj3232aol.com ssj3232aol.com

Todd and Stan

have worked up some numbers in two different worksheets

The first worksheet is hypothetical buyin at $1.5m There are no discounts involved and Stan would get 14.2%

interest in the tahoe house

The second worksheet is reasonable option provided the property is properly appraised at $11 .5m This involves the

same buyin at $1 .5m and reasonable 24% discount on the minority interest Stans interest would be identical to Todds

and the TBJ SC trusts at 18.7%

Kevin Riley CPA

Rossmann MacDonald Benetti CPAs

3838 Watt Avenue Suite E-500

Sacramento CA 95821

Email Kevinrmb-cpa.com

Web www.rmb-cpa.com

Telephone 916 488-8360

Fax 916 488-9478

This email may contain confidential and
privileged

material for the sole use of the intended recipients Any review use distribution or disclosure by

others is
strictly prohibited

If you are not the intended
recipient or authorized to receive for the

recipient please
contact the sender

by reply
email

and delete all
copies

of this message

Incline TSS recapitalization stan.pdf

71K

441
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Incline TSS

New partnership structure

Admission of Stan Jaksick

NO DISCOUNT

12/15/2014 Recapitalization

Tahoe House Appraisal from 8/1 11500000.00

Note receivable Stan Jaksick

New primary mortgage 2400000.00

11500000.00 Kimmel appraisal

1500000.00 1500000.00 Note receivable Stan Jaksick

2400000.00 Mortgage Debt

11500000.00

1500000.00

2400000.00

N/P Duck Lake Ranch

N/P White Pine

13300.00

22000.00

13300.00

22000.00

no change

no change

13300.00

22000.00

Net equity 3/14/14 9064700.00 1500000.00 10564700.00 Net equity 10564700.00

Todd Jaksick Family Trust

Stan Jaksick

TBJ SC Trust

SSJ Issue Tr

Todd Jaksick Family Trust

Stan Jaksick

TBJ SC Trust

SSJ lssueTr

2084881.00

1500000.00

19.73%

2084881.00 19.73%

4894938.00 46.33%

Notes on structure

LLC member interests are subcategorized into Series and Series units

Series voting units must guarantee the debt

Series voting units no additional contribution requirement

Stan to acquire Series units and must guarantee the debt

Tahoe house is valued at $11.5m

Post Notes Valuation

total equity

Ownership

TBJ/TBJ SC equity Recapitalization totals

2084881.00

1500000.00

2084881.00

1500000.00

2084881.00 2084881.00

4894938.00 4894938.00

9064700.00 1500000.00 10564700.00

Ownership after recapitalization

Series Equity

Ownership information

Series Equity Unit

14.20%

Totals 3584881.00 6979819.00 100.00%
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Incline TSS

New partnership structure

Admission of Stan Jaksick

24% DISCOUNT 24.07%

12/15/2014 Recapitalization

N/P Duck Lake Ranch

N/P White Pine

2400000.00

13300.00

22000.00

1500000.00 1500000.00 Note receivable Stan Jaksick

2400000.00

13300.00

22000.00

no change

no change

11500000.00

1500000.00

2400000.00

13300.00

22000.00

Net equity 3/14/14 9064700.00 1500000.00 10564700.00 Net equity

Discounted valuation

10564700.00

8021390.00

Todd Jaksick Family Trust

Stan Jaksick

TBJ SC Trust

SSJ Issue Tr

total equity

Todd Jaksick Family Trust

Stan Jaksick

TBJ SC Trust

SSJ Issue Tr

Todd Jaksick Family Trust

Stan Jaksick

TBJ SC Trust

SSJ Issue Tr

1499934.72

1499934.72

Tahoe House Appraisal from 8/1

Note receivable Stan Jaksick

New primary mortgage

Post Notes

11500000.00 11500000.00 Kimmel appraisal

Valuation

Mortgage Debt

Ownership

TBJ/TBJ SC equity Recapitalization totals

2084881.00

1500000.00

2084881.00

1500000.00

2084881.00 2084881.00

4894938.00 4894938.00

9064700.00 1500000.00 10564700.00

Ownership after recapitalization

Series Equity

Ownership information

Series Equity Unit

Notes on structure

LLC member interests are subcategorized into Series and Series units

Series voting units must guarantee the debt

Series voting units no additional contribution requirement

Stan to acquire Series units and must guarantee
the debt

Tahoe house is valued at $11.5m

Entity interest is discounted 25%

18.70%

18.70%

1499934.72 18.70%

3521585.85 43.90%

Totals 2999869.43 5021520.57 100.00%

Prior new units Total Unit%

23.00 23.00 18.70%

23.00 23.00 18.70%

23.00 23.00 18.70%

54.00 54.00 43.90%

100.00 23.00 123.00 100.00%
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1 IN THE SECOND JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE 
2 STATE OF NEVADA, IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF WASHOE 
3 -ooo-
4 

In the Matter of the Administration 
5 of the SSJ'S ISSUE TRUST. 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

In the Matter of the Administration 
of the 
SAMUEL S. JAKSICK, JR. FAMILY TRUST 

WENDY JAKSICK, 

Respondent and Counter-Petitioner, 

v. 

TODD B. JAKSICK, Individually and as 
12 Trustee of the Samuel S. Jaksick Jr. 

Family Trust and SSJ's Issue Trust. 
13 MICHAEL S. KIMMEL, individually and 

as Co-Trustee of the Samuel S. 
14 Jaksick, Jr., Family Trust, and 

STANLEY S. JAKSICK, Individually and 
15 as Co-Trustee of the Samuel S. 

Jaksick, Jr. Family Trust, Kevin 
16 Riley, Individually and as former 

Trustee of the Samuel S. Jaksick, 
17 Jr. Family Trust and Trustee of the 

Wendy A. Jaksick 2012 BHC Family 
18 Trust, 

19 Petitioners and 
Counter-Respondents. 

20 

CASE NO. 
PR17-00445 
DEPT NO. 15 

CASE NO. 
PR17-00446 
DEPT. NO. 15 

===================================================== 
21 

22 

23 

24 
25 

REPORTED BY: 

DEPOSITION OF TODD JAKSICK 
VOLUME 7 

Friday, February 1, 2019 
Reno, Nevada 

MICHELLE BLAZER CCR #469 (NV) 
CSR #3361 (CA) 

Pages 1192-1377 

Veritext Legal Solutions 
877-955-3855 

Page 1192 
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1 oOo 
2 APPEARANCES 
3 FOR TODD B. JAKSICK, BENEFICIARY SSJ'S ISSUE TRUST AND 

SAMUELS. JAKSICK, JR., FAMILY TRUST: 
4 ROBISON, SIMONS, SHARP & BRUST 

Attorneys at Law 
5 By: Kent Robison, Esq. 

71 Washington Street 
6 Reno, Nevada 89503 
7 

8 FOR PETITIONERS/CO-TRUSTEES TODD B. JAKSICK AND 
MICHAEL S. KIMMEL OF THE SSJ'S ISSUE TRUST AND SAMUEL 

9 S. JAKSICK, JR., FAMILY TRUST: 
10 MAUPIN, COX & LEGOY 

11 

12 

13 
14 
15 

16 

17 
18 

19 

20 

21 
22 
23 

24 

25 

Attorneys at Law 
By: Donald A. Lattin, Esq. 
By: Carolyn Renner, Esq. 

4785 Caughlin Parkway 
Reno, Nevada 89509 

FOR STANLEY JAKSICK: 
MCDONALD CARANO WILSON 

Attorneys at Law 
By: Adam Hosmer-Renner, Esq. 

100 West Liberty Street, Tenth Floor 
Reno, Nevada 89505 

KREITLEIN LAW GROUP 
Attorneys at Law 

By: Philip L. Kreitlein, Esq. 
470 E. Plumb Lane, Suite 310 

Reno, Nevada 89502 

FOR WENDY JAKSICK: 
FOX ROTHSCHILD LLP 
Attorneys at Law 

By: Mark J. Cannot, Esq. 
1980 Festival Plaza Drive Suite 700 

Las Vegas, Nevada 89135 

Veritext Legal Solutions 
877-955-3855 

Page 1193 

AA 0915



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

APPEARANCES, (continued) 

FOR WENDY A. JAKSICK: 

SPENCER & JOHNSON, PLLC 

Attorneys at Law 

R. Kevin Spencer, Esq. 

Zachary Johnson, Esq. 

500 N. Akard Street, Suite 2150 

Dallas, Texas 75201 

ALSO PRESENT: 

Wendy Jaksick 

Stanley Jaksick 

-ooo-
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Veritext Legal Solutions 
877-955-3855 
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1 Q Okay. 

2 A Concept is to be aggressive and sell 

3 property and get that debt paid off as quickly as we 

4 can. 

5 And that's pretty much what I am 

6 recalling right now. 

7 Q All right, and back to my original 

8 question: Do you recall anything about the terms of 

9 the settlement agreement with Stan that adversely 

10 affected Wendy's interests besides the Incline TSS 

11 purchase? Anything else, in your view? 

12 A There was some payments that we agreed to 

13 under the being paid under the AgCredit Loan 101. 

14 We agreed to some attorney fees being 

15 paid. 

16 Q Okay. 

17 A But I believe for the most part it was 

18 very positive for Wendy, Stan, myself, and the trust. 

19 Q Was there any reason you did not include 

20 Wendy in that negotiation or settlement discussion? 

21 MR. ROBISON: Wait. Wait. Objection. 

22 That involves attorney-client communications, and we 

23 agreed to stay on the terms of the deal. 

24 MR. LATTIN: And it also falls under NRS 

25 48.109 which is -- makes the discussions in mediation 

Veritext Legal Solutions 
877-955-3855 

Page 1218 
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fSwsel CrnaH Jessica Clayton cjtcaytonegmail.corn

Fwd Jackrabbit Capital Call

Jessica Clayton cjtclaytonegmail.com Mon May 14 2018 at 152PM
To Jessica Clayton jtclaytonegmail.com

From Stan Jaksick c5sj3232@aol corn
Date December 14 2017 at 53825 PM PST
To LeGoy Bob blegoynicllawfirrn corn
Cc Michael Kimmel rnkirnmel@nevadaiaw corn Todd Jaksick ctjaksick@grnail corn McQuaid Brian

brncquaidmcllawflr-n.corn Lattin Don cdlattinrncllawtrm corn Kevin Riley ckevinrrnb
cpa corn

Subject Re Jackrabbit Capital Call

Hey Guys

Sorry for involving you in these issues and

Bob thank you for your efforts in trying to get us to resolve these disputes but Todds indemnification

agreement has tar bigger impact on the Trust then any Lawsuit or attorney fees ever wll

The only option is for Todd to pay for his percentage Ill pay for mine and so on This is mailer of

pnnciple and never the intentions of my father

borrowed money from my dad many times and the key word is BORROWED paid him back 90% of the

time whether it was for small loan or my interest in Montreux Im not gonna get into what Todd has
hasnt paid for but he has plenty of money and can pay for his own capital calls in an investment that will

surely make him and his Trust lot of money

have filed an objecton with the court regarding this matter so until it is heard or Todd changes his

indemnification agreement substantially he knows where Im coming from the trust is not going to make
his payments and last thing to do is hire another

Attorney to give us an Opinion weeks before

we appear before the Judge

Sent from my iPhone

On Dec 14.2017 at 3.01 PM LeGoy Bob ctjlegoyrrcllawfirm corn wrote

Mike

You make the great point that these disputes are costing the trust and all the parties

substantial amount of fees and stress And as we all know the disputes are only beginning
The costs of these litigations will be staggering greatly damaging Sams Trusts and the
beneficianes personal estales Ow firm thanks all of you for your efforts to resolve these
disputes as soon as possible

Bob ceGoy

Robert LeGoy Jr Esq

TU 1782
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Maupin Cox LeGoy

4785 Caughlin aray
P0 Box 30000

Reno Nevada 89520

775 827-2000

775 827-2185 facsimile

Legal Assistant Sue Mann

blegoymclawfirm corn

www mcllawrrpcom

CONFIDENTIALITY -- This message is intended to be confidential and directed only to the
person/entity as addressed above Furthermore the contents of this message and any
attachments hereto may be subject to the attorney-client pnvilege and/or work productdoctnne and should not be disclosed to other parties or distributed/copied in any way If youhave received this message in error please reply by e-mail to inform us and delete any
copies from your hard drive Thank you

--Original Message--

From Michael Kimmel mkimmelnevadalaw corn

Sent Thursday December 14 2017252 PM

To Stan Jaksick

Cc Todd Jaksick Kevin Riley rvlcQuaid Brian LeGoy Bob

Subject Re Jackrabbit Caprtal Call

If
correctly understand trust counsels prior advice the trust cannot make loans for assetsheld by related entities

Todds demand related to the indemnity agreement is separate issue Stan has objected tothe enforceability or the scope of the indemnity or maybe both generally understand thenature of Stans objection but have not yet seen the legal argument in support of the
objection and at least so far am not quite sure on what basis can just ignore the existence
of the agreement

We can discuss this more in our meeting next week but in the absence of some consensusbetween Stan and Todd related to the indemnity agreement will likely have no choice but to
request that the Trust engage separate legal counsel to issue an opinion letter related to the
enforceability and scope of the indemnity can only imagine what such an opinion will costbut Im not sure what else can do at this point

TJ 1783
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On Dec 14 2017 at 230 PM Stan Jaksick ssj3232@aol corn wrote

Todd

As we previously discussed amok with the Trust loaning you the money for
your payment but you will need to have someone draw up the loan docurnents

would prefer that everyone pay there own percentage ike ALL the other
partners with the exception of Wendy/Lukes interest which list the Trust as the
responsible party under your option and does make sense for the Trust to

pay

do not agree with your Indemnification agreement and have filed an objection
to it and will not agree to the Trust making your payments on valuable asset
that you have very good opportunity to profit from down the road

As you know my request bra small LOAN l0Kwhicfi included Promissory
note was not allowed for the Montreux Day Group I-bA Fees so my only
option is Capital call in which Im responsible for my 50% interest

Stan

Sent from my iPhone

On Dec 13.2017 at 436 PM Todd Jaksick

ctjaksickgrnail corn wrote

Looking forward to talking with you guys We have few positive
developments related to Jackrabbit Please see the attached
revised capital call request that is needed ASAP but no later than
December 222017

Jackrabbit Capital Call ChartA B.pdf

Thank you

Todd

775771-2122

TJ 1784
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Mike Stan and Kevin

Jackrabbit Properties executive committee approved capital call of $120000 The minority
owners have agreed and are planning to mail in their cumulative total of 36%

The majority partners 64% contribution totals the sum of 76800

Please see attached breakdown

cPtA shaded area is how we have been handling past capital calls over the last several

years

Chart shows revised payment method post recent discussion with Trust Team

Jackrabbits capital call is time-sensitive Jackrabbit needs the capital call to be funded no later
than 12/22/17

Im requesting the portion of the capital call for the IBJ Investment Trust and Todd Jaksick LLC

totaling $50508 be paid by the Samuel iaksick Jr Family Trust pursuant to the 2008
Indemnification and Contribution Agreement

TI 17
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ChartA

$24000.00 20.0000% Greenshoot Holdings LLC

$12960.00 10.8000% SC Ranch

$6240.00 5.2000% George Brown 1986 Rev Trust

$34430.40 28.6920% TBJ Investment Trust 100% owner of SmkCrk Ranch ftC
$4800.00 4.0000% Todd Jaksick LLC

$33832.32 28.1936% Samuel Jaksick Jr Trust

$3737.28 3.1144% Stan iaksick II LLC

$120000.00

Capital Call

$76800.00

Chart

$24000.00 20.0000% Greenshoot Holdings LLC

$12960.00 10.8000% SC Ranch

$6240.00 5.2000% George Brown 1986 Rev Trust

$45708.00 38.0900% TBJ Investment Trust 100% owner of SmkCrk Ranch LLC
$4800.00 4.0000% Todd Jaksick LLC

$2255.64 1.8797% Samuel Jaksick Jr lrrv Grandchild Tr No
$9022.44 7.5187% Wendy Jaksick Trust under Si Trust Family Agreement
$15013.92 12.5116% Stan iaksick II LLC

$120000.00

Capital Call

AA 0924
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DV13-00656              **SEALED**PIERRE A. HASCHEFF V. LYNDA HASCHEFF (D12) 
 
 
 
 
                                    STATUS CONFERENCE  
DECEMBER 7, 
2020 
HONORABLE 
SANDRA A. 
UNSWORTH 
DEPT. NO. 12 
C. COVINGTON 
(Clerk) 
C. WOLDEN 
SUNSHINE 
REPORTING 
(Recording) 
 
 
 
 

Hearing conducted by Zoom video conferencing.   
 
Plaintiff, Pierre Hascheff, was not present but was represented by Todd L. Torvinen, Esq. 
Defendant, Lynda Hascheff, was not present but was represented by Shawn B. Meador, Esq. 
 
This hearing was held remotely because of the closure of the courthouse at 1 South Sierra Street, 
Reno, Washoe County, Nevada due to the National and Local emergency caused by COVID-19. 
The Court and all the participants appeared by simultaneous audiovisual transmission. The 
Court was physically located in Reno, Washoe County, Nevada, which was the site of the court 
session. Counsel/Parties acknowledged receipt of Notice that the hearing was taking place 
pursuant to Nevada Supreme Court Rules- Part 9 relating to simultaneous audiovisual 
transmissions and all counsel/parties had no objection to going forward in this manner.   
 
The Court explained the purpose of today’s hearing.  
 
Counsel Torvinen stated he is prepared to go forward with the hearing.  
 
Counsel Meador stated he is prepared to go forward.  
 
THE COURT ORDERED: The evidentiary hearing set for December 21, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. 
is hereby confirmed. The Court waives exhibit binders for this hearing. Any exhibits shall 
be filed in at least 48 hours in advance. 
 
Court shall prepare the order. 
 
The clerk’s minutes are not an order of the Court. They may be altered, amended or superseded by a written 
order. If the matter was recorded via JAVS, a copy of the proceeding may be request through the Second 
Judicial District Court Filing Office located at 75 Court Street, Reno, NV 89501. If the matter was reported via 
Court Reporter, a transcript must be requested directly from the Court Reporter. 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Rule 25(b) of the Nevada Rules of Appellate Procedure, I hereby 

certify that I am an employee of Fennemore Craig, P.C. and that on this date, I 

served a true and correct copy of the attached document through the Court’s 

electronic filing system to the following registered users:

Debbie A. Leonard, Esq.  
Nevada State Bar No. 8260  
Leonard Law, PC
955 S. Virginia Street, Suite 220
Reno, Nevada 89502 

Attorneys for Respondent/  
Cross-Appellant

DATED this 16th day of November, 2023.

/s/ Diana L. Wheelen  
An Employee of Fennemore Craig, P.C. 


